
 

Page 1 of 273 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, APRIL 06, 2020 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

 

 
 
To protect against the spread of the COVID-19, the meeting will be held via Videoconference. The public 
may access/participate in the meeting in the following ways: 
a) By dialing the phone number +1 301 715 8592, +1 312 626 6799 or +1 253 215 8782 and when prompted, 
enter the meeting ID (access code) 980 661 7775. 
b) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://bit.ly/cf-zoom.   
c) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://youtu.be/nBmV5qyPvvw  (view only).  
d) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 

To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular Meeting of March 16, 2020. 

2. Special Meeting of March 20, 2020. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

3. Public hearing on the proposed vacation and dedication of a storm sewer easement on the northeast 
corner of the property located at 312 West 1st Street. 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published March 20, 2020) 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
c) Staff comments. 
d) Public comments. (Continue hearing to April 20, 2020) 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

4. Receive and file a proclamation recognizing April 19-25, 2020 as Administrative Professionals Week 
and April 22, 2020 as Administrative Professionals Day. 

5. Receive and file the resignation of Brian Wingert as a member of the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 

6. Approve the recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Paul Lee to the Civil 
Service Commission, term ending 04/01/2024. 

7. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of March 16, 2020 relative to the following 
items: 

1



 

Page 2 of 273 

a) Cedar Heights Drive Update.  
b) Bills & Payroll. 

8. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of February 2020. 

9. Approve the request of The Space 109 for a temporary sign at 109 East 2nd Street. 

10. Approve the application of Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, for a cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor 
permit. 

11. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Godfather's Pizza, 1621 West 1st Street, Class B beer - renewal. 
b) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore's Pub), 5307 Caraway Lane, 
Class C liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Luxe Nail Bar, 5907 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) CVS/Pharmacy, 2302 West 1st Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
f)  Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E liquor – new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

12. Resolution endorsing a communication from the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors to the 
Governor of Iowa relative to the issuance of a "Safe at Home" order in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

13. Resolution approving and adopting a job classification for the position of Sales & Marketing 
Coordinator in the Visitors & Tourism Division. 

14. Resolution approving and accepting from the Municipal Electric and Gas Utilities the permanent 
transfers of $3,126,580.00 to the General Fund and $30,000.00 to the Economic Development Fund 
of the City of Cedar Falls. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing expenditure of funds for the purchase of a water 
tanker/pumper apparatus. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Red House Studio Lease relative to the use of 
224 West Seerley Boulevard as artist studio space, in conjunction with the Hearst Center’s Visiting 
Artist Program. 

17. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the 
2020 Permeable Alley Project.  

18. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the 2020 
Street Construction Project. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Terracon Consultants, Inc. to complete an Iowa DNR Tier 2 
Report, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project.  

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to the Oak Park Blvd. Sewer 
Replacement. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with Robinson 
Engineering Company relative to the Black Hawk & Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed 
Assessment Project. 

22. Resolution certifying to the Treasurer of the State of Iowa the actual population of territory annexed 
to the City of Cedar Falls. 

2



 

Page 3 of 273 

23. Resolution setting April 20, 2020 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance amending 
the boundaries for wards and precincts within the City of Cedar Falls to incorporate recently annexed 
territory. 

24. Resolution setting April 20, 2020 as the date of public hearing on the plans, specifications & form of 
contract for the Cedar Falls Recreation Center - Locker Rooms Renovation Project. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

25. Allow Bills and Payroll of April 6, 2020. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 
business.) 

Adjournment 

  

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, MARCH 16, 2020 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, in the City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Absent: 
None. 

 
52720 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of March 2, 2020 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52721 - Mayor Green announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on a 

proposed resolution adopting and levying the final schedule of assessments for 
the 2019 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 2. Public Works Director Schrage 
provided a brief summary of the project and process.  

 
52722 -    It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,907, 

adopting and levying the final schedule of assessments for the 2019 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project, Zone 2, be adopted. Following due consideration by the 
Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #21,907 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52723 - The Mayor announced that in accordance with the public notice of March 6, 

2020, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposal to undertake 
a public improvement project for the Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project. It 
was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the proof of publication 
of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52724 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Public Works Director Schrage 
provided a brief summary of the proposed project. Following a comment by Jim 
Snodgrass, 3019 Minnetonka Drive, protesting the easement price, the Mayor 
declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52725 -    It was moved by Taiber and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #21,908, 

approving a public improvement for the Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project 
and authorizing acquisition of private property for said project, be adopted. 
Following questions by Councilmembers Taiber, Sires, Kruse and Harding, and 
Mayor Green, and responses by Public Works Director Schrage and City 
Attorney Rogers, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,908 duly passed and adopted. 

 
4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

52726 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Harding that the following items and 
recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 

 
Receive and file the resignation of Carol Lilly as a member of the Parks & 
Recreation Commission. 
 
Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions:  
a) Sue Beach, Board of Adjustment, term ending 03/31/2025.  
b) Amy Lang, Board of Adjustment, term ending 03/31/2025. 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of March 2, 2020 relative to 
the following items:  
a) Board of Adjustment Interview - Sue Beach.  
b) Board of Adjustment Interview - Amy Lang.  
c) Hearst Visioning Committee.  
d) Red Cedar Update.  
e) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of March 10, 2020 
relative to a hearing to consider the appeal of an employee grievance denial. 
 
Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of January 2020. 
 
Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  
a) Barn Happy, 11310 University Avenue, Class B native wine - renewal.  
b) Social House, 2208 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.  
c) The Stuffed Olive, The Roxxy and Deringer’s Public Parlor 314-316 Main 

Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.  
d) Voodoo Lounge, 401 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal.  
e) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal.  
f) Chad's Pizza, Birdsall Park Softball Complex, Class B beer & outdoor service - 

6-month permit.  
g) Chilitos Mexican Bar and Grill, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C liquor - new. 

 
Following a question by Councilmember Taiber and response by City Attorney 
Rogers, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
52727 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution # 21,909, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with 
INVISION Architecture, LTD for design services relative to the Recreation Center 
Locker Room Upgrades. 
 
Resolution #21,910, approving and authorizing submission of the City's FY2020-
2024 Public Housing Agency (PHA) Five Year Plan. 
 
Resolution #21,911, approving and authorizing execution of a Funding 
Approval/Agreement with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) relative to the Community Development Block Grant 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

(CDBG) Program. 
 
Resolution #21,912, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. relative to the 12th Street Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,913, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc., in the amount of $208,144.62, for the 
2020 Permeable Alley Project. 
 
Resolution #21,914, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Peterson Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $3,385,340.30, for the 
2020 Street Construction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,915, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Shive-Hattery, Inc. relative to the Greenhill Road/South 
Main Street Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,916, approving and authorizing execution of a Temporary 
Construction Easement Agreement for Stairway, in conjunction with the 
Downtown Streetscape and Reconstruction Project. 
 
Resolution #21,917, setting April 6, 2020 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed vacation and dedication of storm sewer easement on the northeast 
corner of the property at 312 West 1st Street. 
 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,909 through #21,917 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52728 -   It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #21,918, 

approving and adopting the recommendations of the Mayor's Firefighter 
Transition Task Force relative to a Transition Plan for the immediate 
implementation of the Public Safety Officer Program, approving and adopting a 
revised job classification for the position of Public Safety Officer, the Form and 
Content of a Letter of Recommendation, the Form and Content of a Resignation 
of Employment and Release Agreement; and authorizing the City Administrator 
to execute any and all such approved documents as necessary, be adopted.  
 
City Attorney Rogers, Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, City 
Administrator Gaines and Fire Chief Bostwick responded to questions and 
comments by Councilmembers Miller, Taiber, deBuhr, Harding, and Miller, Mayor 
Green, Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, Jennie Hansel, 219 Angie Drive, Whitney 
Smith, 2904 Neola Street, and Mary LeGore, 2602 Cedar Heights Drive. The 
Mayor then put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, 
Taiber. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,918 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52729 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #21,919, 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

approving a revised Central Business District Overlay Zoning District site plan for 
development on Lot 3 of River Place 3rd Addition, be adopted.  

 
 Community Development Director Sheetz provided a brief summary of the 

proposed revisions. Following questions by Councilmembers Kruse, Miller, 
Taiber, Harding and responses by Developer Mark Kittrell, Community 
Development Director Sheetz, City Attorney Rogers and Councilmember Sires, it 
was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to add a sixth condition of a 
human/pet drinking fountain to the project. 

 
 It was then moved by Taiber and seconded by Harding to rescind the previous 

motion and amend the original motion to include a reasonable and best effort to 
include a water fountain for use. The motion to amend carried unanimously.  

 
 Following comments by Ty Kimble, 2204 Valley Park Drive, and Whitney Smith, 

2904 Neola Street, the Mayor then put the question on the original motion, as 
amended, and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Taiber. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,919 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52730 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Taiber that the bills and payroll of 

March 16, 2020 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer 
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper 
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52731 -    Councilmember Miller responded to recent social media posts. 
 
      Finance and Business Operations Director Rodenbeck responded to a question 

by Councilmember Kruse regarding upcoming bond sales and the ability for the 
City to refinance existing bonds.   

 
52732 -    City Administrator Gaines provided an update on efforts being taken by the City 

to protect employees and citizens during the COVID-19 pandemic, and 
responded to questions by Councilmembers Kruse and Taiber regarding 
changes in scheduled meetings. 

 
      Mayor Green announced that the March 24th Cedar Falls Special Election was 

being postponed to March 31st, and encouraged participation by absentee ballot. 
 
52733 - The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:32 P.M. 
 
 Mayor Green reconvened the City Council meeting at 8:51 P.M. and stated that 

Property Acquisition had been discussed but that no further action was required 
at this time. 

 
52734 -    Attorney Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane, commented on a perceived 

conflict of interest with a Planning and Zoning committee member regarding 
recent revisions to College Hill zoning, and he requested that the City implement 
a system to check for potential conflicts. 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

  
      Jeremy Sulentic, 1008 Rocklyn Street, commented on council meetings being 

held without public access and read a section of the Iowa Code regarding 
removal of elected officials. 

 
52735 - It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Taiber that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:52 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

8

Item 1.



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, MARCH 20, 2020 

SPECIAL MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Special Session, pursuant 
to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, at 
4:00 P.M. on the above date. The Mayor opened the meeting from City Hall and 
announced that the meeting was an electronic meeting being conducted in 
conformance with the Governor’s Proclamation of Disaster Emergency dated 
March 19, 2020. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, an in-person meeting was 
impractical and notice of the meeting was posted approximately 23 hours in 
advance of the meeting. Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, 
Sires, Taiber. Absent: None. 

 
52736 -    It was moved by Harding and seconded by Sires that a resolution modifying 

enforcement of parking ordinances be adopted. Following comments by Mayor 
Green, Councilmembers Taiber, Miller, Kruse, Sires, Harding and Darrah, 
Community Main Street Acting Director Kim Bear, and College Hill Partnership 
Executive Director Kathryn Sogard, and responses by City Administrator Gaines 
and City Attorney Rogers, Councilmember Harding withdrew the motion. City 
Administrator Gaines will prepare a memorandum outlining relaxed parking 
enforcement that is agreeable to Community Main Street and College Hill 
Partnership, to be presented to the City Council for their consent. 

 
52737 -    It was then moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah to refer to the Committee 

of the Whole use of emergency funds for local stimulus. Following questions and 
comments by Councilmembers Taiber, Harding, Kruse, Darrah, Miller and Sires, 
and responses by City Administrator Gaines, Councilmember Harding withdrew 
the motion. City Administrator Gaines will provide updates on community needs 
stemming from the pandemic as Staff Updates during future City Council 
meetings. 

 
52738 -    Mayor Green introduced Black Hawk County Health Department Director Dr. 

Nafissa Cisse Egbuonye, who commented on the COVID-19 pandemic and 
provided an update from the County. 

 
      City Administrator Gaines provided an update on city operations during the 

pandemic and responded to a question by Councilmember Harding regarding 
public participation for the April 6, 2020 City Council meeting. 

 
      Councilmember Kruse announced that the Iowa Secretary of State postponed the 

Special Election to July 7, 2020. 
 
52739 - It was moved by Taiber and seconded by Miller that the meeting be adjourned at 

5:19 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9

Item 2.



  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Honorable Robert M. Green, Mayor, and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: April 2, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Public Hearing - Community Bank and Trust Easement Vacation 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to vacate and dedicate a storm sewer easement (Case #VAC19-004) 
 

PETITIONER: Community Bank and Trust, VJ Engineering 
 

LOCATION: 
 

19.2’ by 21.9’ storm sewer easement located at the northeast corner of the 
property at 312 W. 1st Street 
 

 

PROPOSAL 
This request is to vacate a portion of a 19.2’ by 21.9’ storm sewer easement located at the 
northeast corner of the property at 312 W. 1st Street. This easement area is approximately 420.5 
square feet. It is proposed to retain a 50 square foot area off the northeast corner and vacate 
the remaining 370.5 square feet for the construction of a new bank facility. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO CONTINUE THE PUBLIC HEARING 
Due to cancellation of the March 25 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting due to 
precautions taken to prevent the spread of the COVID-19 virus, the Commission has not yet 
made a recommendation on this matter. The Commission is scheduled to discuss and make a 
recommendation on this matter at their meeting on April 8, 2020. Since the public hearing date 
had already been set by the Council for the April 6 meeting, Community Development staff 
recommends that the Council open the public hearing on April 6th and make a motion to 
continue the hearing until the April 20 Council meeting, at which time the Council will have 
received a recommendation from the Planning & Zoning Commission.  
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

     VISITORS & TOURISM/  

PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES INSPECTION SERVICES RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS CULTURAL PROGRAMS 

220 CLAY STREET 220 CLAY STREET  110 E. 13TH
 STREET  6510 HUDSON ROAD 

PH: 319-273-8606 PH: 319-268-5161 PH: 319-273-8636 PH: 319-268-4266 

FAX: 319-273-8610 FAX: 319-268-5197 FAX: 319-273-8656 FAX: 319-277-9707 

 

10

Item 3.



11

Item 4.



On Mar 29, 2020 

 

To whom it may concern, 

 

I came into this volunteer position without a political mindset, but to assist the city Cedar Falls with its 

vision and implementation of how to grow. I believe with a community of this size that taking smart 

growth when you can get it is appropriate. We must build for tomorrow’s generation, today. They will be 

the tenants and consumers for the next 30 years. That generation wants density. They want walkable 

neighborhoods. The demand for personal vehicles is declining, so I believe it’s ok to develop on behalf of 

consumer demand and not vehicle spacing. My beliefs and vision for my hometown, not my relationships, 

drove every single vote that I submitted.  

 

Because of adjacent property owner’s concern over new competition, my vote on one certain project 

became controversial. In my honest opinion, this project is critical for UNI more than the city. We are in 

constant competition with Iowa and Iowa State for students. If you’ve been to either of those campus 

areas, you know that UNI’s, close to campus options are not up to par with the options available to 

students at those other institutions. We need to compete and win-over more students to help our 

University thrive once again.  

 

For almost two years now, this group of opposition has had an attorney fighting this project. At the last 

city council meeting, I was asked by this attorney to resign for my “controversial” vote in his opinion. 

The Controversy being my business relationship with the developer. There was no legal wrongdoing. I 

will not benefit one bit from this project directly or indirectly. I voted alongside my vision for this city, 

which I will call home for the rest of my life!  

 

With that being said, I am writing this letter to resign from my position on the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. When people are hired to discount my integrity and potentially impact my family and 

business, it’s time to step away. It’s unfortunate that some in this community would be so selfish 

to ensure that their profits come before the well being of our community and University.  

 

I made several difficult votes in my years. They were for, and against, friends, business competition and 

neighbors. Because in a town of this size, it’s impossible to avoid every perceived conflict. My vision and 

beliefs of what Cedar Falls could be led me to every vote that was counted.  

 

Respectfully, 

 

Brian Wingert 

 

Brian Wingert 

Broker, Owner 

Structure Real Estate  

2021 Main St, Suite A 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

319.404.4884 

Brian@Brianwingert.com  

 

12

Item 5.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: March 6, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Re-appointment of Mr. Paul Lee as Civil Service Commissioner 

 REF: Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-306: Civil Service Commission 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a), I am recommending that Mr. Paul Lee be re-appointed to 

the Civil Service Commission for a term of four years, to end on April 1, 2024.  

 

2. In my discussions with Mr. Lee, I believe that he exemplifies the critical thinking, sound 

judgment, and independence needed for effective service as a Civil Service Commissioner. 

 

# 

 

 

13

Item 6.



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

March 16, 2020 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 6:15 p.m. on March 16, 
2020, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert M. Green, 
Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, Dave Sires, and 
Nick Taiber. Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Andrew Wind  with the 
Waterloo Courier, Wade Greiman with Snyder & Associates, as well as members of the 
community were in attendance. 

Mayor Green called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda, 
Cedar Heights Drive Update. City Engineer, David Wicke introduced Wade Greiman 
with Snyder & Associates.  Mr. Greiman went through the background, the budget, the 
public feedback, and the schedule of work for the Cedar Heights Drive reconstruction 
project.  Council members had questions regarding Bicycle & Pedestrian 
accommodations, cost differences on different land configurations, and cost differences 
comparing round-a-bouts to traffic signals at the Cedar Heights and Greenhill 
intersection.  Mr. Greiman was able to answer these questions.  Frank Darrah moved to 
continue with final design and the letting for the project as proposed.  Daryl Kruse 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  

There being no discussion, Mayor Green moved to the final item on the agenda, bills 
and payroll. Daryl Kruse moved to approve the bills and payroll as presented, and Mark 
Miller seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously.  

There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 6:32 p.m.  

Minutes by Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

14

Item 7.



15

Item 8.



16

Item 8.



17

Item 8.



18

Item 8.



19

Item 8.



20

Item 8.



21

Item 8.



22

Item 8.



23

Item 8.



24

Item 8.



25

Item 8.



26

Item 8.



27

Item 8.



28

Item 8.



29

Item 8.



30

Item 8.



31

Item 8.



32

Item 8.



33

Item 8.



34

Item 8.



35

Item 8.



36

Item 8.



37

Item 8.



38

Item 8.



39

Item 8.



40

Item 8.



41

Item 8.



42

Item 8.



43

Item 8.



44

Item 8.



45

Item 8.



46

Item 8.



47

Item 8.



48

Item 8.



49

Item 8.



50

Item 8.



51

Item 8.



52

Item 8.



53

Item 8.



54

Item 8.



55

Item 8.



56

Item 8.



57

Item 8.



58

Item 8.



59

Item 8.



60

Item 8.



61

Item 8.



62

Item 8.



63

Item 8.



64

Item 8.



65

Item 8.



66

Item 8.



67

Item 8.



68

Item 8.



69

Item 8.



70

Item 8.



71

Item 8.



72

Item 8.



73

Item 8.



74

Item 8.



75

Item 8.



76

Item 8.



77

Item 8.



78

Item 8.



79

Item 8.



80

Item 8.



81

Item 8.



82

Item 8.



83

Item 8.



84

Item 8.



85

Item 8.



86

Item 8.



87

Item 8.



88

Item 8.



89

Item 8.



90

Item 8.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: April 6, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Request for Temporary Movable Sign Permit 
  The Space 109 (Owner: John Jacobs) – 109 E 2nd Street 
 
This department received a request from The Space 109 to place a sidewalk sign in 
front of the establishment at 109 E 2nd Street. The Space 109 is an art gallery that is 
open to the public free of charge. Copies of the sign permit application and site plan are 
attached. John Jacobs, the property owner submitted all of the information required by 
the sidewalk sign ordinance. The sign will be set out when the gallery is open during 
business hours over the next year. The sign will not obstruct traffic vision. 
 
We recommend your approval of the application submitted by The Space 109 to place a 
sidewalk sign in front of the business at 109 E 2nd Street subject to the following 
stipulations: 

 John Jacobs is the owner of the establishment (permit is non-transferrable). 

 Sign placement will allow five feet of unobstructed walking space in the sidewalk. 

 Proposed sign dimensions will not exceed the required limits of 2.5 foot width 
and 5 foot height. 

 Owner will place sign outside only during hours of operation and remove by 
closing time. 

 Such permit will expire one (1) year after approval and may be renewed annually 
provided a renewal application and fee is submitted. 

 Complies with all other requirements as stated in Section 19-74(e) of the Cedar 
Falls municipal code. 

 
The owner’s proposal complies with all of the above requirements. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact this 
office. 
 
 
xc: Karen Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager 
 
Attachment: Application Materials 

91

Item 9.



92

Item 9.



93

Item 9.



94

Item 9.



95

Item 9.



96

Item 9.



97

Item 9.



98

Item 10.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Assistant Police Chief 

Date:  April 02, 2020 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Godfather's Pizza, 1621 West 1st Street, Class B beer - renewal. 

b) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore's Pub), 5307 
Caraway Lane, Class C liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal. 

c) Luxe Nail Bar, 5907 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 

d) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

e) CVS/Pharmacy, 2302 West 1st Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

f) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E liquor – new. 

 

99

Item 11.



RESOLUTION TO CALL ON THE GOVERNOR OF IOWA TO ISSUE A STATEWIDE “SAFE AT HOME” ORDER 

 

Whereas the COVID-19 global pandemic poses an unprecedented threat to the health and well-being of 

our community; and 

Whereas the Governor of Iowa has, on March 17, 2020, proclaimed a State of Public Health Disaster 

Emergency in the State of Iowa and has taken steps to limit the spread of COVID-19 in our state;  and 

Whereas widespread community transmission of the coronavirus has been identified in counties across 

Iowa, including confirmation in Black Hawk County on March 31, 2020; and 

Whereas the body of scientific knowledge available on COVID-19 shows that staying at home is the 

surest defense against the rapid spread COVID-19, which will in turn ensure that our local medical 

facilities are not overloaded in the coming weeks;  

Be it resolved:  that the Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors and the undersigned mayors 

representing cities within Black Hawk County call on the Governor of Iowa to issue a “Safe at Home 

Order” covering the state of Iowa ordering all Iowans to stay safe at home except for when conducting 

essential activities.  

Be it further resolved: that we ask the Governor to utilize the guidance from the U.S. Department of 

Homeland Security and the Centers for Disease Control to clearly define what is and is not considered to 

be an essential business, essential non-profit, and essential activity as pertains to this order.   

100

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: April 1, 2020 

 SUBJECT:  New Job Classification – V & T Sales and Marketing Coordinator 

 
Attached is a job classification for a new position, V & T Sales and Marketing 

Coordinator.  You may recall that in goal setting there was discussion about adding a 

full time position in our V & T area that would allow the City to be more proactive in 

recruiting events to Cedar Falls.  The position was included in the FY21 budget that was 

approved by City Council.  Since this is a new position, a job classification was 

developed and a pay grade was established.   

 

Upon approval of the job classification, the Civil Service hiring process for this position 

will begin.  If you have any questions regarding the job classification, please feel free to 

contact Stephanie Houk Sheetz or myself.   

 

101

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing Coordinator   1 

 

Job Title 
Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing 
Coordinator  

 Job Code 792 

Department Community Development  Pay Band 9 

FLSA Status Non-Exempt  Union Status Non-Union 

Prepared 03/06/2020  Adopted 4/06/2020 

Amended  

 
Class specifications are intended to present a descriptive list of the range of duties performed by 
employees in the class.  Specifications are not intended to reflect all duties performed within the job. 
 
 

POSITION DEFINITION 

 
This position actively solicits business from a variety of organizations and presents Cedar Falls as a 
premier meeting and event destination. Through cooperative efforts with the local hospitality industry, 
destination marketing partners, and community members, the Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing 
Coordinator will work to secure business for the area that generates significant economic impact for our 
community.  
 
 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED AND EXERCISED 

 
Receives direction from Visitor, Tourism and Cultural Programs Manager. 
 
This position may provide direction to Visitor & Tourism coordinators and assistants. 
 
 

EXAMPLES OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES 

 
Important responsibilities and duties may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Develop content for marketing materials and coordinate their layout with graphic designer. 
 

 Distribute marketing materials including website, social media, print media, email promotions and 
direct mail that promote Cedar Falls as a destination for meetings and groups. 
 

 Research meetings and events that complement Cedar Falls’ image, amenities and economic 
development efforts and for the purpose of bringing events to the city. This includes on-line 
research, attending business to business tradeshows, sales calls, telephone calls and other 
means of exposure. 
 

102

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing Coordinator   2 

 Maintain a database consisting of potential clients and businesses including pertinent facts about 
the types and size of events they host, those we have won, and the economic impact of these 
events. 
 

 Develop relationships with planners to produce leads. This includes active involvement with local, 
state, regional and national organizations that are likely to produce new meetings and events for 
the city. 
 

 Build relationships with local hotels and businesses. Organize sales blitzes, cooperative 
marketing opportunities and create proposals to attract meetings and groups to the city.  
 

 Service events we host by organizing volunteers, shuttle services, scheduling off-site excursions 
and activities, companion itineraries, speakers and entertainment. 
 

 Maintain relationships with planners we have already hosted to encourage repeat business. 
 

 Respond to all meeting inquires that come to the Visitors Bureau. 
 

 Connect event planners with community businesses capable of providing products and services 
required for a successful event. 
 

 Willingness to work some nights and weekends to accommodate events, meeting schedules, and 
site visits, and to attend shows and out-of-town sales calls. 
 

 Support and assist with duties of the Visitors & Tourism Senior Services Coordinator and 
Assistants including, but not limited to answering phones, assisting visitors and arrangement of 
facility for events. 
 

OTHER DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

 Assist with daily operations of the Visitor Center. 
 

 Perform other duties as assigned.  
 
 

MINIMUM SKILLS  AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE 

 

 Proficiency with modern office procedures, methods, and computer equipment including word 
processing, spreadsheets, database management and social media. 

 

 Principles of record keeping, letter writing, and report preparation. 
 

 Exceptional communication skills with ability to execute effective sales presentations. 
 

 Experience in coordinating and administering multiple projects simultaneously. 
 

103

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing Coordinator   3 

 Highly self-motivated and ability to be self-directed. 
 

 Strong organizational skills with attention to detail. 
 

 Committed to relationship-building with strong interpersonal skills. 
 

 Exceptional listening skills and the ability to anticipate business needs. 
 

 
ABILITY TO PERFORM 
 

 Follow all safety rules and regulations of the City. 
 

 Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing to inform, motivate and influence. 
 

 Analyze data and convert this information into workable goals for improvement. 
 

 Establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of work. 
 

 Prepare and present clear and concise reports to the Visitors & Tourism Board, City Council and 
stakeholders. 
 

 Analyze problems, identify alternative solutions, project consequences of proposed actions and 
implement recommendations in support of goals. 
 

 Effectively utilize: desktop publishing, word processing and spreadsheet applications, Internet, 
analytics, telephone and office skills, etc. 

 
 

EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING GUIDELINES 

 
MINIMUM EXPERIENCE 
 
Three years of experience in sales, marketing, or public relations, preferably in the travel and hospitality 
industry, 
 
MINIMUM EDUCATION OR FORMAL TRAINING 
 
Associate’s degree in sales, marketing, hospitality or business 
 
LICENSES/CERTIFICATIONS REQUIRED 
 
Possession of, or ability to obtain, an appropriate, valid driver's license. 
 

WORKING CONDITIONS AND ENVIRONMENT 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 

104

Item 13.



 

 

JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

 

City of Cedar Falls Job Classification – Visitors and Tourism Sales & Marketing Coordinator   4 

 
Office environment utilizing standard office equipment, such as computers, phones, and photocopiers; 
subject to high levels of public contact, frequent interruptions, unusual fatigue factors, and irregular work 
hours; occasionally subject to outdoor weather conditions. 
 
 
PHYSICAL CONDITIONS 
 
Functions of this position require maintaining physical condition necessary for walking, standing, and 
sitting for prolonged periods of time; pushing, pulling, and reaching above the shoulder motions; 
squatting, bending, and kneeling while performing work activities; general manual dexterity required for 
typing for prolonged periods of time; carrying or lifting items greater than 40 pounds. 
 

105

Item 13.



106

Item 14.



107

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

VISITORS, TOURISM AND CULTURAL PROGRAMS 
6510 HUDSON ROAD 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-268-4266 
FAX: 319-277-9707 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

  

 
 
 

 

 TO: The Honorable Mayor Green and City Council 

 FROM: Heather Skeens, Cultural Programs Supervisor 

 DATE: March 31, 2020 

 SUBJECT: UNI Alumni Studio at Red House Studios (224 West Seerley Boulevard) 

 

Please find attached a lease agreement for use of 224 West Seerley Boulevard as artists’ studio 
space, in conjunction with the Hearst Center’s new Visiting Artist Program and the UNI Alumni 
Studio partnership. 
 
Please note, the lease agreement does not require monthly rent from the lessee, as the use of 
the studio is sponsored by the UNI Department of Art/UNI Foundation via a $3,000.00 
sponsorship. All other aspects of the lease are the same as the three leases approved at the 
January 20, 2020 City Council meeting for the three artists now leasing studios at 224 West 
Seerley Boulevard. 
 
The lessee was selected by a sub-committee of the Cedar Falls Art and Culture Board after a call 
for applications from recent graduates of the UNI Department of Art. The Art and Culture Board 
received three applications, of all high quality. The selected applicant, Abigail Hedley, will be 
required to pass a background check. 
 
Below is additional background information from the previous memo dated January 13, 2020: 
 
History of the Property: 
The house directly to the east of the Hearst Center was purchased by the city in June 1995 at 
the request of the Cedar Falls Art and Culture Board, in order to plan ahead for a possible 
expansion to the Hearst. The property was used as a residential rental until late 2017. After 
trying to rent it again without any interest, Hearst Center staff and the Art and Culture Board 
drafted a proposal for artist studio space, to make use of the property in service of Hearst 
Center programming.  
 
Project Summary: 
The “Red House Studios” project was formed through various discussions with Hearst building 
visioning committee members, local artists, Cedar Valley Arts steering committee members, 

108

Item 16.



UNI faculty and city staff. After an initial proposal in August of 2018, the project was vetted 
through a series of meetings with city staff, risk management committee, other area arts 
organizations, and UNI Department of Art faculty. The project was implemented to serve 
several needs:  

 to create an arts-related, mission-driven use for the rental property next door to the 
Hearst Center; 

 to catalyze the start of a Visiting Artist program in Cedar Falls Schools, coordinated by 
the Hearst Center; 

 to collaborate with UNI on a community outreach program; modeled after a successful 
program at Drake University. 

 

The Red House Studios and Visiting Artist program are meant to be a programmatic test of this 
model, in anticipation of a possible studio program in the renovation plans for the Hearst 
Center, which would eventually be revenue-generating. All costs associated with the initial two-
year run of this program are covered by an estate donation held by the Hearst Center for the 
support of a Visiting Artist program. 
 
The house will rent to four artists for the length of one year as studio workspace. Three studios 
will be rented to artists currently practicing in our community. A fourth studio will be rented to 
a recent graduate of the UNI art program. The use of the UNI studio is an award for excellence, 
supported by the UNI Department of Art through a $3000 sponsorship. We anticipate the 
additional rental agreement to be on Council’s agenda for approval at the March 16th meeting.  
 
All artists occupying studios have agreed to provide two programs each at a pre-selected Cedar 
Falls school. This coordination of the Visiting Artists will be administered by Heather Skeens, 
Cultural Programs Supervisor, and Lynsie Maynard, Cedar Falls School lead art teacher. Artists 
will be paired with classrooms by Lynsie Maynard depending on each artist’s studio practice 
and the interests of the art teachers. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns. 

 

 
 
CC: Stephanie Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

Kim Manning, Visitors and Tourism Bureau/Cultural Programs Manager 
 

 

109

Item 16.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS  

RED HOUSE STUDIO LEASE  

  

This Lease Agreement in entered into on the _26th_ day of ___March___, 2020, by the  

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, (“Lessor”), whose address for purposes of this Lease Agreement is  

220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, and _____Abigail R. Hedley_______________  

(“Lessee”), whose address for purposes of this Lease Agreement is  

__2500 Olive St. Apt. E Cedar Falls, IA 50613____________________________________.  

  

  

1. Premises and Term.  In consideration of the agreements below set forth, Lessor hereby leases 

to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor, from the 7
th

 day of April, 2020 to the 31
st
 

day of December, 2020, the following described premises located in Cedar Falls, Black 

Hawk County, Iowa, together with the improvements thereon, and all rights, easements and 

appurtenances therewith:  

  

Studio _A_ located at 224 West Seerley Boulevard, Cedar Falls, Iowa. See  

Diagram A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. (the  

“Premises”)  

  

2. Rent. The lessee acknowledges that rent shall be paid by the UNI Foundation at a rate of 

$375 per class visit, with eight scheduled visits for the fall semester of 2020. The rental amount 

for the period of the lease is $3000.00 to be paid as follows: The UNI Foundation will be 

invoiced for $375 per classroom visit within one week of the completion of each of the eight 

visits. All delinquent payments shall bear interest at the rate of seven percent (7%) per annum, 

computed from the scheduled date herein to the date of actual payment. Rent shall be paid as set 

forth herein. Payment shall be made in the form of a Money Order, Certified Check, Cashier 

Check, or Personal Check, made payable to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and either mailed or 

delivered to the Hearst Center for the Arts, 304 West Seerley Boulevard, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

50613, or a payment with VISA, Mastercard, or Discover Card may be made at the Hearst 

Center for the Arts.  

  

3. Use. Tenant shall use the Premises only as a working artist studio, subject to the following 

terms:  

a. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: Lessee shall comply with all applicable laws, 

ordinances and building health and police regulations, and shall not use the Premises 

for any illegal purpose.  

b. NO RESIDENTIAL USE: Lessee shall not use the Premises for any type of 

residential purpose including sleeping overnight.  

   

110

Item 16.



4. Security. Lessee understands that use of the Premises is at Lessee’s own risk, and Lessee 

shall be solely responsible for the security of Studio __A__. The Premises will be accessible 

by Lessee via key 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Lessee shall ensure that entry doors to the 

Premises are locked upon arrival and departure, except as may be otherwise posted.  

a. FIRE SAFETY: Lessee shall not engage in any activity or permit any use of the 

Premises which will void any insurance on the Premises, or which causes an increase 

in Lessor’s standard insurance rates. Lessee shall exercise basic fire safety practices, 

including storing all paints and solvents in a fire-rated metal storage cabinet and, 

which Lessor may inspect at any time, and shall dispose of all flammable materials in 

a safe manner. Unless approved by Lessor in writing in advance, under no 

circumstances shall Lessee have in the Premises a hot plate, space heater, open flame, 

candle, incense or any other item that in the opinion of Lessor creates an 

unreasonable risk of injury or damage.   

b. NO NUISANCE: Lessee shall not in any way create, or allow in the Premises, a 

nuisance or disturb any other person in the Premises, or injure the reputation of the 

Lessor. Creating a nuisance or disturbance could include, but is not limited to: verbal 

abuse, physical abuse, failure to respond to a cease and desist notice or request, 

disregard for personal safety of others, housing of animals, abandonment of vehicles 

or other property on the premises, making excessive noise, use of excessively noise, 

odorous or toxic materials, access of roof or other restricted areas, theft including the 

theft of paper goods supplied by Lessor, unauthorized entry of other studios, or 

unauthorized handling or removal of another tenant’s work.  

c. RULES AND REGULATIONS: Lessee shall at all times observe, perform and abide 

by all the rules and regulations as may be adopted from time to time by Lessor and 

which may apply to all occupants of the Premises.  

d. NO SMOKING: Lessee shall not smoke or vape inside or around the Premises except 

in a designated smoking area, if any.  

e. SIGNAGE: Lessee shall not, without Lessor’s prior written consent, place signage 

anywhere in or near the Premises.  

f. STUDIO KEYS: Lessor shall provide all keys to the Premises and no duplicate keys 

are allowed to be obtained by Lessee.  If Lessee requires a replacement key or is 

locked out of the Premises, Lessor shall charge Tenant $10.00 per occurrence per key. 

If Lessee does not return all keys and duplicates for the Premises at the expiration or 

early termination of the Lease, Lessor shall deduct the cost of rekeying the Premises 

by a locksmith from the Security Deposit. If the Security Deposit is insufficient to 

cover such cost, Lessee shall be responsible for the difference. No locks or padlocks 

are permitted for any outside entrance or inside door except as provided or approved 

in advance by Lessor.  

g. Lessee shall notify Lessor of any anticipated extended absence from the Premises not 

later than the 1
st
 day of the extended absence.  

  

111

Item 16.



5. Acceptance of Premises in Its “As Is” Condition.  Lessee has inspected the property and 

fixtures and acknowledges that they are in a reasonable and acceptable condition for their 

intended use, and that the rent agreed upon is fair and reasonable for this community for 

premises in their condition. In the event that the condition changes so that, in the Lessee’s 

opinion, the use and rental value of the Premises are affected, then Lessee shall promptly 

give reasonable notice to Lessor. The Lessor assumes no obligation to make changes, 

alterations, or additions except as otherwise herein provided. By signing this lease, Lessee 

accepts all conditions of the Premises, in their present, “as is” condition.  

  

6. Assignment and Subletting. Lessee shall not assign this lease or sublease the Premises or any 

portion thereof without the prior written consent of Lessor, which consent may be withheld 

by Lessor in its sole and absolute discretion.  

  

7. Common Areas.  The Premises shall include the non-exclusive use of the bathroom, the 

three-season porch, the kitchen, and a large closet located on the main floor.  The driveway 

may be used by Lessee on a first come, first served basis.  The garage may be used for 

storage of items directly associated with the use of the Premises as set forth in this Lease, on 

a non-exclusive basis, provided that an area of 10 feet by 10 feet is reserved and available for 

temporary Studio work.  

  

8. Maintenance of Premises. Lessor shall be responsible for routine maintenance and repair of 

the Premises.  However, Lessee shall:   

a. Comply with all obligations imposed upon tenants by applicable provisions of 

building and housing codes materially affecting health and safety;  

b. Keep the Premises as clean and safe as their condition permits;  

c. Dispose of all garbage and other waste in a clean and safe manner;  

d. Conduct himself or herself in a manner that will not disturb a neighbor’s peaceful 

enjoyment of the Premises;  

e. Keep the plumbing fixtures as clean as their condition permits;  

f. Use in a reasonable manner all electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating, air 

conditioning and other facilities and appliances;   

g. Not deliberately or negligently destroy, deface, damage, impair or remove a part 

of the Premises or knowingly permit a person to do so; and  

h. Make no additions, alterations or improvements to the Premises without the prior 

written consent of the Lessor.  

  

9. Surrender of Possession. Lessee shall surrender possession of said Premises at the expiration 

of this Lease without further Notice to Quit and in as good repair and condition as the same 

are in or may hereafter be placed, unavoidable wear through careful use or damage by fire or 

the elements caused without any fault on the Lessee’s part excepted.  

  

112

Item 16.



10. Utilities. Lessor shall pay all basic public utility services used, including all electricity, gas, 

water, city sewer, garbage and trash removal. Neither Internet nor cable television services 

shall be provided by Lessor.  

  
11. Liability for Damage or Injury. Lessee shall be liable for any damage or injury to Lessee’s 

person or any of Lessee’s property caused by the negligence or other fault of Lessee or  

Lessee’s, employees, agents, invitees or associates which may arise out of or in connection 

with the use and occupancy of the Premises.  

  

12. Hazardous Materials. Lessee expressly represents and agrees:  

a. NO HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: Lessee shall use all reasonable safety 

precautions when handling   any hazardous, toxic, flammable, combustible or 

explosive fluid, material, chemical or substance, including any item defined as 

hazardous pursuant to Iowa law. Lessee understands and agrees that Lessor’s 

consent to use such substances is at Lessor’s sole option and complete discretion 

and that such consent may be withheld or may be granted with any conditions or 

requirements that Lessor deems appropriate.  

b. LIABILITY: Lessee shall be fully liable for all costs and expenses related to the 

use, storage, removal and disposal of hazardous substances used or kept on the 

property by Lessee, and Lessee shall give immediate notice to Lessor of any 

violation or any potential violation of any environmental regulation, rule, statute 

or ordinance relating to the use, storage or disposal of any hazardous substance.  

c. REMEDIATION: Lessee, at its sole cost and expense, agrees to remediate, 

correct or remove any contamination of the property caused by any hazardous 

substances which have been used or permitted by Lessee or any employee, agent, 

invitee or associate of Lessee on the Premises. Remediation, correction or 

removal shall be in a safe and reasonable manner, and in conformance with all 

applicable laws, rules and regulations. Lessee reserves all rights allowed by law to 

seek indemnity or contribution from any person, other than the Lessor, who is or 

may be liable for any such cost and expense.  

d. INDEMNIFICATION: Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold Lessor harmless 

from and against all claims, causes of action, damages, loss, costs, expense, 

penalties, fines, lawsuits, liabilities, attorney fees and engineering and consulting 

fees, arising out of or in any manner connected with Lessee’s use or use permitted 

by Lessee of hazardous substances on the Premises, on or after the date of this 

Lease and during the term of this Lease, including but not limited to, injury or 

death to persons or damage to property and including any diminution of the value 

of any part of the Premises which may result from the foregoing. This indemnity 

shall survive the cessation, termination, abandonment or expiration of this Lease.  

e. DISPOSAL: Lessee agrees not to place, pour or dump any toxic materials or 

chemical waste in the toilets, sinks or drains, nor anywhere in, on or around the 

113

Item 16.



Studio or the Building and agrees to make appropriate arrangements, at Lessee’s 

sole cost and expense, to store and dispose of all toxic and other chemical wastes.   

  

13. No Unlawful Business. Lessee agrees that Lessee shall not engage in or permit any unlawful 

business whatsoever on the Premises.  

  

14. Compliance with Lawful Regulations. Lessee shall comply with all lawful regulations, 

restrictions, ordinances and laws applicable to the proper use and occupancy of the Premises; 

and not allow ashes or trash of any kind to accumulate on the Premises.  

  

15. Snow Removal. Lessor agrees to remove snow and other obstructions from the sidewalks and 

driveway and be responsible for the grounds, including lawn cleanup and care.  

  

16. Access. Lessor shall have the right to enter the leased Premises, including the Studios, in 

order to inspect the premises, monitor use, make necessary or agreed repairs, decorations, 

alterations or improvements, supply necessary or agreed services, or exhibit the leased 

Premises to prospective or actual purchasers, tenants, workmen or contractors.  

  

17. Non-liability of Lessor. Lessor shall not be liable for any damage or loss, either to person or 

property, sustained by Lessee or any other person, resulting from anything occurring during 

the term of this Lease, including any extension, on the Premises, without exception and 

without recourse.  This includes but is not limited to the Premises or any part or 

appurtenances thereof becoming out of repair, due to any accident, any act or neglect of any 

tenant, occupant or visitor of the Premises, or of any other person. Lessee is solely 

responsible for any insurance costs, damage and loss related to Lessee’s personal property, 

including but not limited to Lessee’s artwork. Lessee shall be solely liable, including legal 

fees if any and to the full extent of the law, for any damages caused by Lessee’s use and 

occupancy. Lessee shall be solely liable for the actions of any employee, agent invitee and 

associate.  

  

18. Non-Recourse. No individual elected or appointed officer, employee, agent or volunteer of 

Lessor, past or present, shall be personally liable for performance of Lessor’s obligations in 

this Lease.  

  
19. Termination of Lease.  

a. Upon expiration of the term of the Lease, Lessee’s continued occupancy of the 

Premises without objection by Lessor shall convert this lease to a month-to-month 

lease, which shall be terminable on thirty (30) days’ written notice by either party.  

b. The parties acknowledge that Lessor may terminate this Lease for any reason on 

ninety (90) days’ advance written notice to Lessee.  

  

114

Item 16.



20. Non-Payment of Rent. In addition to Lessor’s other remedies provided by law, and without 

prejudice thereto, if rent is unpaid when due, and rent is not paid in accordance with the 

schedule set forth in paragraph 2 above within three (3) days after notice by Lessor of 

nonpayment and the Lessor’s intention to terminate the lease if the rent is not paid within that 

period of time, the Lessor may terminate this Lease.  

  

21. Fire or Casualty Damage. If the Premises are damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty 

to the extent that enjoyment of the Premises is substantially impaired, Lessee may (1) 

immediately vacate the premises and notify the Lessor within fourteen (14) days of Lessee’s 

intention to terminate this Lease, in which case the Lease shall terminate as of the date of 

vacating, or (2) if continued occupancy is lawful, vacate only that part of the Premises 

rendered unusable by the fire or other casualty, in which case, Lessee’s liability for rent shall 

be reduced in proportion to the diminution in the fair rental value of the Premises. If this 

Lease is terminated under the provisions of this paragraph, Lessor shall return to Lessee all 

prepaid rent and security that is due Lessee after lawful deductions, if any   

  

22. Lessee Warranty. Lessee warrants that Lessee is not employed by the City of Cedar Falls and 

that this Lease has not been obtained by agreement to pay any fee, commission, percentage, 

gift or any other consideration to any person, and that no employee of the City of Cedar Falls 

shall be permitted to any share or part of this Lease or to any benefit to arise therefrom.  

  

23. Moving Expenses. All expenses incurred by the Lessee for moving Lessee’s personal 

property to the Premises and from the Premises upon expiration of this Lease, shall be  

Lessee’s responsibility.  

  

24. Property Manager. Heather Skeens, Cultural Programs Supervisor of the City of Cedar Falls, 

whose address is 304 West Seerley Boulevard, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, and whose 

telephone number is 319-268-5550 , and whose cell telephone number is 319-575-2877 , is 

the Property Manager who is authorized to manage the premises covered by this Lease and to 

receive notices and demands in connection herewith.  

   

25. Security Deposit. At the time of execution of this Lease, Lessee and Lessor acknowledge that 

Lessee has paid a security deposit in the sum of $300.00, which will be held by the Lessor 

and disbursed as a rental deposit according to law  

   

26. Insurance. Lessee and Lessor agree to insure their respective interests in their real and 

personal property.  

  

27. Mail.  Lessee may not designate the Premises as a mailing address for any purposes.  

  

115

Item 16.



28. Notices. Any notice, for which provision is made in this Lease, shall be in writing, and may 

be given by either party to the other, in addition to any other manner provided by law, in any 

of the following ways: (a) by personal delivery; (b) by service in the manner provided by law  

for the service of original notice; or (c) by sending said notice by certified or registered mail, 

return receipt requested, to the last known address.  For purposes of this Lease, the place for 

the payment of rental as provided in paragraph 2 above shall be the place designated by 

Lessor for the receipt of any such notice.  

  

29. No Pets. Lessee shall not be entitled to have any pets on the Premises during the term of this 

Lease.  

  

30. No Right to Incur Expenses. Lessee shall have no right to incur on behalf of Lessor any 

expenses for repairs or maintenance. Alterations or improvements to the Premises without 

the prior written consent of the Lessor, unless there is an emergency that affects Lessee’s 

health or safety and Lessee is unable to contact the Property Manager for Lessor to obtain 

authorization for such expense. Lessee shall not contact any service or repair companies, but 

shall notify Lessor’s Property Manager of the need for such service or repairs, and Lessor 

shall determine whether such services or repairs shall be made.  

  

31. No Installation of Fixtures or Other Improvements. Lessee shall not install any fixtures or 

other improvements on or to the Premises without Lessor’s prior written consent.  

  

32. Window Coverings. All window coverings installed in the premises at Lessor’s expense shall 

remain with the premises and become the property of Lessor upon termination of this Lease. 

Lessee shall not make any further window coverings or other alterations or improvements to 

the leased Premises without the prior written consent of the Lessor, which Lessor may refuse 

in its sole and absolute discretion.  

  

33. Construction. Words and phrases herein shall be construed as in the single or plural number, 

and as masculine, feminine or neuter gender, according to the context.  

   

34. Entire Agreement. This Lease, including any addendum attached hereto, constitutes the entire 

agreement between Lessor and Lessee with respect to the subject matter hereof; and no 

statement, representation or promise with reference to this Lease, or the Premises being 

leased, or of any repairs, alterations or improvements, or any change in the term of this 

Lease, shall be binding upon either of the parties unless in writing and signed by both Lessor 

and Lessee.  

  

35. Termination. In addition to the termination rights under this Lease, Lessor and Lessee may 

terminate this Lease as otherwise provided by law.   

  

116

Item 16.



  

  

Lessee:  

  
_________________________________________________  __________3/26/2020______  

Abigail R. Hedley              

  

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

  

DATE  

BY______________________________________________  ________________________  

     INSERT TEXT              

  

ATTEST:  

  

DATE  

BY______________________________________________  ________________________  

     INSERT TEXT              DATE  

 

117

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: March 31st, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 2020 Permeable Alley Project 
  Project No. ST-000-3225 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Benton’s 
Sand and Gravel for the construction of the 2020 Permeable Alley Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Benton’s Sand and Gravel for the construction of the 2020 Permeable Alley 
Project. This project involves the construction of two (2) permeable alleys. The purpose 
of these permeable alleys is to infiltrate storm water runoff with the goal of improving the 
water quality in Dry Run Creek. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer 
  

 
 
 

118

Item 17.



119

Item 17.



120

Item 17.



121

Item 17.



122

Item 17.



123

Item 17.



124

Item 17.



125

Item 17.



126

Item 17.



127

Item 17.



128

Item 17.



129

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: March 23rd, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 2020 Street Construction Project 
  Project No. RC-000-3185 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Peterson 
Contractors, Inc for the construction of the 2020 Street Construction Project.  
 
The Department of Public Works recommends approving and executing the contract 
with Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the construction of the 2020 Street Construction 
Project. This project involves the full removal and replacement of three (3) streets and 
HMA overlay with curb and gutter replacement on seven (7) streets. In addition the 
project includes cold-in-place recycled asphalt pavement on North Union Road.   
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer 
  

 
 
 

130

Item 18.



131

Item 18.



132

Item 18.



133

Item 18.



134

Item 18.



135

Item 18.



136

Item 18.



137

Item 18.



138

Item 18.



139

Item 18.



140

Item 18.



141

Item 18.



142

Item 18.



143

Item 18.



144

Item 18.



145

Item 18.



146

Item 18.



147

Item 18.



148

Item 18.



149

Item 18.



150

Item 18.



151

Item 18.



152

Item 18.



153

Item 18.



154

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 2, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Terracon Consultants, Inc. 
   W. 1st Street Reconstruction – Iowa DNR Tier 2 Report 
   Supplemental Agreement No. 1 
   City Project No. RC-000-3118 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Terracon Consultants Inc. 
that outlines additional scope of services and costs to complete a Tier 2 Report as a 
result of laboratory analysis of the soil and groundwater samples identified chemical 
concentrations which exceed applicable IDNR Tier 1 target levels, and risk receptors 
such as water wells and water lines are believed to be sufficiently close enough to the 
source, that the original Tier 1 assessment will require a completion of a Tier 2. The Tier 
2 Report is required by the Iowa DNR and must be completed by a certified 
groundwater professional. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Service Agreement with Terracon 
Consultants Inc. for the Iowa DNR Tier 1 Report on February 17th, 2020. Funding for 
this Supplemental Agreement will be provided by the General Obligation Bond in the 
amount of $10,525. This project is included in the City of Cedar Falls’ Capital 
Improvements Program (#140). 
 
The Public Works Department requests your consideration and approval of this 
Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Terracon for the Tier 2 Report.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

155

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DIVISION
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY
319-273-8629
FAX 319-273-8632

ENGINEERING DIVISION
220 CLAY STREET
319-268-5161
FAX 319-268-5197`

WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION
501 E. 4TH STREET
319-273-8633
FAX 319-268-5566

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1

W. 1st Street Reconstruction – Franklin Street to Hudson Road
Iowa DOT Project No. NHSX-057-2(29)-3H-07

Iowa DNR Tier 2 Report
Cedar Falls, Iowa

City Project Number: RC-000-3118

WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
(CLIENT), and Terracon Consultants, Inc., a Delaware corporation (CONSULTANT), dated February 17th,
2020 for the municipal engineering support services; and

WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement to include Scope of
Services and Compensation for additional items required as a part of the Iowa DNR Tier 2 requirement,

NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement by adding
the following items:

I. SCOPE OF WORK

See attached Exhibit A – Scope of Services.

II. COMPENSATION

Compensation for this scope of Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the
hourly fees and other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total
compensation is a not to exceed fee of Ten Thousand Five Hundred, and Twenty-Five Dollars
($10,525).

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall remain as specified in
the Professional Services Agreement dated February 17th, 2020, as supplemented.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written
below.

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT.

By:  By:

Printed Name: :  Robert M. Green  Printed Name:   Dave C. Cleary

Title: :  Mayor of Cedar Falls  Title:  Environmental Department Manager

Date:  Date: April 2, 2020

156

Item 19.



Terracon Consultants Inc.     2640 12th Street SW     Cedar Rapids, IA 52404
P 319-366-8321     F 319-366-0032   terracon.com

March 27, 2020

City of Cedar Falls
Department of Public Works – Engineering Division
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Attn: Mr. Matthew Tolan, EI
P: (319) 268-5164
E: matthew.tolan@cedarfalls.com

Re: Proposal for Additional Site Assessment Services
City ROW
Highway 57 and Iowa Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613
Registration No. 201900050 LUST No. 9LTS59
Terracon Project No. 13207013

Dear Mr. Tolan:

Terracon Consultants, Inc. (Terracon) appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal to
perform additional site assessment services at the above referenced site.  An outline of the
project, Terracon’s scope of services, including schedule and compensation are provided in the
following sections.

 PROJECT INFORMATION

Terracon has initiated a Tier 1 assessment at the site as a result of contamination identified during
the removal of two underground storage tanks (USTs) and associated equipment from the site in
2019.  Based on the preliminary findings of the Tier 1 assessment, Terracon recommends
forgoing the completion of the Tier 1 report and proceeding with a Tier 2 assessment.  Terracon
proposes the following additional services to supplement Terracon’s original proposal dated
February 4, 2020.  Following authorization of these services by the City of Cedar Falls (the City),
Terracon will notify the Iowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) of the intent to complete a
Tier 2 instead of a Tier 1.

157

Item 19.



Proposal for Tier 2 Report
City ROW ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
March 27, 2020 ■ Terracon Project No. 13207013

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 2

 SCOPE OF SERVICES

Terracon has a 100% commitment to the safety of all its employees. As such, and in accordance
with our Incident and Injury Free® safety culture, Terracon will develop a safety plan for use by
our personnel during field services. Prior to commencement of on-site activities, Terracon will hold
a meeting to review health and safety needs for this specific project. At this time, we anticipate
performing fieldwork in a United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) Level D work
uniform consisting of hard hats, safety glasses, protective gloves, and steel-toed boots. It may
become necessary to upgrade this level of protection, at additional cost, during sampling activities
in the event that petroleum or chemical constituents are encountered in soils or groundwater that
present an increased risk for personal exposure.

Sampling and reporting will be completed according to the IDNR guidance document “Tier 1
Guidance: Site Assessment of Leaking Underground Storage Tanks (LUST) Using Risk-Based
Corrective Action (RBCA)” dated January 2020 and “Tier 2 Site Cleanup Report Guidance” dated
January 2020.  The field activities and reporting will be handled by or under the management of a
Certified Groundwater Professional (CGP) as required by IDNR guidance.

The following sections will present Terracon’s approach to meeting the IDNR request.

2.1 Base Services

n Terracon will request municipal utility locations through Iowa One-Call.  Onsite and private
utilities will be provided by the client unless otherwise directed.

n The site-specific Health and Safety Plan will be updated prior to starting field work and will
be used by Terracon personnel while on site.

n Four borings will be advanced north of MW-2, east of MW-3 and south and west of MW-1
(source) to provide definition of the soil and groundwater plumes and satisfy IDNR
guidance.  Soil samples will be collected for laboratory analysis from each boring.
Following collection of soil samples, the borings will be converted into permanent
monitoring wells.

n Access agreements are already in place from the Tier 1 activities and Terracon does not
anticipate needing to obtain further permits to advance the above described borings.

n The boring/wells will be advanced according to IDNR guidance by logging and field
screening soil cores continuously in one-foot intervals using an organic vapor meter
(OVM) to qualitatively evaluate for the presence of volatile petroleum hydrocarbons.  The
boring/wells will be advanced approximately 5 feet into the observed groundwater table or
until field screening results are less than 10 parts per million (ppm).  We expect this depth

158

Item 19.



Proposal for Tier 2 Report
City ROW ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
March 27, 2020 ■ Terracon Project No. 13207013

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 3

not to exceed approximately 25 feet below ground surface (bgs) based on previously
reported water levels.  If drilling in excess of 25 feet bgs is necessary, additional charges
will be incurred as presented in Table 1.

n Per IDNR guidance, a soil sample will be collected from each boring/well for laboratory
analysis.  The samples will be collected at the interval of highest OVM reading.  If OVM
readings are 0 ppm, the samples will be collected at the capillary fringe zone or other interval
as determined by the CGP.

n The wells will be constructed according to IDNR guidance to intersect the groundwater
table based on drilling observations and previously reported water levels.  The wells will
be developed, top of casing and ground surface elevations will be surveyed to a known
benchmark, and groundwater level measurements will be obtained.

n Groundwater samples will be collected from each well according to IDNR guidance after
water level measurement and purging at least three well volumes.

n The soil and groundwater samples will be submitted to a certified lab under standard chain
of custody protocols for analysis of benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene and xylene (BTEX) by
Iowa Method OA-1 and total extractable hydrocarbons (TEH) as diesel and waste oil by
Iowa Method OA-2.  In addition, the groundwater samples will be submitted for analysis
of methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE) by Iowa Method OA-1.  Analysis of MTBE in soil is not
required.

n Terracon will utilize the information obtained from the additional services described above
to convert the Tier 1 report to a Tier 2 report per IDNR guidance.

2.2 Additional Services Beyond Base Services

The scope of this proposal is based upon IDNR guidance, documentation of UST closure, and
preliminary data developed and obtained by Terracon.

Fees for these services are listed in Table 1 and are based on mobilization from Terracon’s Cedar
Falls, Iowa office.  Please note that the table is not all-inclusive.  If, as a result of these services,
additional work is required outside the scope of this proposal and beyond those outlined in the
Table 1, you will be contacted, and upon request, proposed costs for additional work will be
provided.  Client authorization will be obtained prior to commencement of additional work outside
the scope of this proposal.

159

Item 19.



Proposal for Tier 2 Report
City ROW ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
March 27, 2020 ■ Terracon Project No. 13207013

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 4

2.3 Schedule

Services will be initiated upon receipt of the written notice to proceed.  In order to comply with the
proposed schedule, the following items are required to be provided by the client at the time of
notification to proceed in order to meet the client’s required project completion date.  Please
include the following requested items along with the notification to proceed:

n Right of entry to conduct the field services.
n Notification of any restrictions or special requirements (such as safety) regarding

accessing the site.
n Locations of any buried tanks or other subsurface structures, including site service utilities,

known to exist in the area.
n A signed Supplement to Agreement for Consulting Services (Agreement) evidencing

acceptance of this scope of services.

2.4 Scope and Report Limitations

The fees presented in Table 1 assume that boring locations are accessible by truck/track mounted
equipment.  Auger cuttings and purged groundwater will be thin spread on site unless otherwise
requested by the client.  The auger cuttings and purged groundwater can be containerized and
disposed of at a permitted facility at additional cost if requested by the City.  If it is determined that
a private utility locater is necessary or requested, Terracon can obtain the services of a
subcontractor at a cost plus 15%.  The City will be informed of the fee prior to engagement of the
private utility locater.

The findings and conclusions presented in the final report will be based on the site’s current utilization
and the information collected as discussed in this proposal.  Please note that we do not warrant
database or third-party information, or regulatory agency information used in the compilation of
reports.

This evaluation will make use of Iowa-specific risk-based corrective action (RBCA) protocols to
evaluate the nature of adverse environmental impact associated with the identified chemical
release under 1996 changes to Iowa Administrative Code 455B, Chapter 135.  The evaluation
does not constitute a complete risk assessment consistent with the definitions and protocols of
CERCLA.  The client should recognize that no guarantee can be made that the RBCA evaluation
will result in either a no action or reduced remedial recommendation.

The limitations herein must be considered when the user of this report formulates opinions as to
risks associated with the site.  No warranties, express or implied, are intended or made.

160

Item 19.



Proposal for Tier 2 Report
City ROW ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
March 27, 2020 ■ Terracon Project No. 13207013

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 5

 COMPENSATION

Fees for services specific to this site are $10,525 and are detailed in the attached Table 1.  Interim
invoices will be submitted regularly and are due upon receipt.  Invoices will reflect the units
performed in accordance with the above discussion and expressed in Table 1.

 AUTORIZATION

We understand the Client will amend the Professional Services Agreement dated February 17, 2020
and provide to Terracon for review. Services will be initiated upon receipt of the written notice to
proceed.  This proposal is valid only if authorized within 90 days from the proposal date.

We appreciate the opportunity to provide this proposal and look forward to continuing our work
with you on this project.  If you have questions or comments regarding this proposal, please
contact Dave Cleary at (319) 277-4016 or via email at dave.cleary@terracon.com.

Sincerely,
Terracon Consultants, Inc.

Dave C. Cleary, REM Jesse M. Nelson, REM, CGP
Environmental Department Manager Environmental Project Manager

DMG/JMN: N:\Projects\2020\13207013\Proposal\13207013.City ROW Tier 2 Supplmental Proposal.draft.docx

Attachments: Table 1

Copies:  Addressee (emailed)

161

Item 19.



Terracon Project Number:
Site Name:

Address:
City, State:

LUST Number:
Registration Number:

Date:

Task Unit Type No. of Units Total
Engineering Services
Tier 2 report 2,000$ lump sum 1 2,000$
CAD 75$ /hour 20 1,500$
Tier 2 Pathway Evaluations (Soil, Groundwater, Vapor, etc.) 250$ /pathway 4 1,000$
Project Management - CGP 135$ /hour 3 405$

Subtotal 4,905$
Field Services
Field personnel mobilization 160$ /mobilization 2 320$
Daily equipment charges (IP/water probe, PID, survey, etc.) 125$ /day 2 250$
Field receptor surveys (including explosive vapor, water wells,

surface water bodies, enclosed space, and water lines) 250$ lump sum 1 250$
Field Geologist/Engineer/Scientist 75$ /hour 16 1,200$
Drill rig mobilization 450$ /mobilization 1 450$
Field screening boring installation - 25' 300$ /boring -$
every additional foot after 25' 15$ /foot -$
Monitoring well installation - 25' 950$ /well 4 3,800$

every additional foot after 25' 25$ /foot -$
Hydraulic conductivity testing and evaluation 170$ /well -$

Subtotal 6,270$
Sample preparation and laboratory analysis:

Soil:  OA-1 (BTEX) and OA-2 (TEH) 100$ /sample 4 400$
Groundwater:  OA-1 (BTEX & MTBE) and OA-2 (TEH) 150$ /sample 4 600$
Groundwater:  QA/QC (trip, field and 10% duplicate blanks) 150$ /sample 1 150$

Subtotal 1,150$

Credit from remaining Tier 1 budget 1,800$ LS 1 1,800$

Total 10,525$

Table 1:  Services and Fees

Cost per
Unit

201900050
3/27/2020

9LTS59
Cedar Falls, Iowa
Highway 57 and Iowa Street
City ROW
13207013

162

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 2, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates   
  Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 1 
  City Project No. SA-002-3182 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the Oak 
Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement project. The enclosed agreement provides additional 
Right-Of-Way scope of services to the original Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement 
Professional Services Agreement previously approved by Council on February 18th, 
2019. The cost of this agreement is $2,800 and paid for out of the Sewer Rental Fund.  
 
The Department of Public Works requests your consideration and approval of this 
Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for the additional Right-
Of-Way scope of services. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 

David Wicke, City Engineer 

163

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Engineering Division  Inspection Services Division
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 
 

Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number SA-002-3182 
 

 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (CLIENT), 
and Snyder & Associates, Inc. (CONSULTANT), of Cedar Rapids, Iowa, dated February 18, 2019 for the 
design services and geotechnical survey relative to the Oak Park Boulevard Sewer Replacement project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement to include Scope of 
Services and Compensation for additional items required as a part of the Oak Park Boulevard Sewer 
replacement project,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows:  
 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
  
1.  RIGHT-OF-WAY SCOPE OF SERVICES.  Consultant will provide State of Iowa licensed real 

estate agents who will negotiate and endeavor to acquire for the Client all of the necessary easements 
and/or real property parcels needed for the Project.  Mary Ann Carnock and Brian DePrez are 
employees of Consultant, and are state of Iowa licensed real estate sales persons with SNYDER & 
ASSOCIATES RIGHT-OF-WAY SERVICES, LLC, Ankeny, Iowa, a State of Iowa licensed real estate 
broker and a wholly owned subsidiary of Consultant.  Mary Ann Carnock and Brian DePrez will be 
designated as “Appointed Agents” and will represent the Client in a “Buyer Exclusive Agency” capacity 
in all matters pertaining to the negotiation and acquisition of easements and/or real property for said 
public improvement project.  Client shall also be a Client of Appointed Agent. 
 
Client does hereby request Appointed Agent to select, prepare and complete form documents for use 
incident as to a residential real estate transaction of four units or less, as provided by Client.  Such 
documents shall be limited to those listed in Section 1.6, provided the parties are given written notice 
that these are binding legal documents and competent legal advice should be sought before signing; 
 
Client and Consultant acknowledge and agree that the Appointed Agents are required to adhere to 
Federal and State of Iowa statutes; the rules of the Supreme Court of Iowa as they may pertain to real 
estate agents; the rules and regulations promulgated by the Iowa Real Estate Commission; and, the 
Iowa Administrative Rules and regulations in regards to real estate agents’ conduct, responsibilities, 
and duties.  Said statutes, rules and regulations will supersede and be paramount to any provision 
contained herein, anything to the contrary notwithstanding. 
 
 
 

164

Item 20.



Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. SA-002-3182 

IN REGARDS TO ACQUISITIONS, CONSULTANT WILL: 
 
1.1. Attend initial project meetings with the representatives of Client to establish lines of communication 

regarding elements of the scope and schedule and to set property acquisition parameters for the 
Project;  
 

1.2. Complete a parcel file for each property involved with the Project in accordance with the needs of 
Client and/or the Project requirements; 
 

1.3. Prepare legal descriptions and acquisition plats for each easement and/or fee title acquisition, if 
requested by Client; 

 
1.4. Unless provided by the Client; retain and coordinate the services of a licensed, certified appraiser 

(hereinafter referred to as “Appraiser”) who, subject to the approval of the Client, will be a 
subconsultant to Consultant.  The Appraiser will prepare appraisals and/or Project Data Books, as 
needed.  The Appraisers’ work will be reviewed by a second party as approved by the Client and 
as required by Local, State and /or Federal Right-of-Way acquisition procedures. The Appraiser 
will prepare, sign and furnish to the Consultant and Client appraisal documentation following 
accepted appraisal principles and techniques in accordance with the Iowa DOT “Appraisal Policy 
& Procedures Manual”.  The Client will review and forward written approval of all findings by the 
Appraiser; 
 

1.5. Unless provided by the client; retain and coordinate the services of an abstractor, who will be a 
Subconsultant to Consultant, who will prepare Certificates of Title for parcels where fee title and 
permanent easements are required. 

 
1.6. Use acquisition forms and documents provided by Client or prepare acquisition documents under 

the direction, review and approval of the Client’s legal department.  Acquisition documents may 
include, but not be limited to: (1) Offer to Purchase, (2) 10 day-waiver, (3) real estate purchase 
agreement, (4) Easements, (5) title clearing documents as directed by Client’s attorney, and (6) 
release of tenant interest and leasehold claims;  (7) Warranty Deed would be prepared by the 
Client’s attorney and facilitated through Client staff. 

 
1.7. Make (through the Appointed Agent) personal and private contacts with each property owner and 

tenant (the Parties) or their representative to explain the effect of the acquisition, answer 
questions, present a written offer, and consider counter offers and to make approved offers for 
administrative settlements.  Non-resident property owners will be contacted by certified  or 
registered mail or by U.P.S. 

 
1.8. Make a good faith effort to acquire the necessary property within 90 days after a written offer has 

been submitted to the owner and tenant.  Negotiations will be considered complete upon 
occurrence of one of the following: (1) the parties accept the offer, (2) the parties accept an 
administrative settlement, (3) the parties fail or refuse to accept the offer or administrative 
settlement, and/or (4) in the judgment of the Consultant, negotiations have reached an impasse; 

 
1.9. Notify the Client of every parcel on which negotiations have reached an impasse or which cannot 

be acquired by negotiated Agreement at the completion of the negotiations phase of the work.  If 
the Client is to condemn, the Consultant will deliver as much of the file to the Client as is necessary 
for the Client’s condemnation attorneys to begin preparation for the condemnation of the parcel.  
The Client will provide written notice to the parties that the parcel is being prepared for 
condemnation.  The Consultant, when notified in writing by the Client, will continue in an attempt 
to negotiate an Agreement after notice has been sent that condemnation is being prepared, but 
before notice of condemnation has been served.  Once notice of condemnation has been served, 
negotiations will cease unless requested by Client to continue as additional services. 

 
 

165

Item 20.



Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. SA-002-3182 
 

 
1.10 Deliver all signed acquisition documents and title clearing (as directed by Client’s attorney), to        

Client for payment and closing tasks. 
 
 

NO RELOCATION SERVICES ARE INCLUDED BY CONSULTANT 
 
 

2. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.  Client understands and agrees that it will be responsible for and will 
provide the following, in a timely manner: 

 
2.1. Unless produced by Snyder & Associates, Inc. survey and engineering staff, provide to Consultant 

all known and existing plans, specifications and data pertaining to the project that may affect 
Consultant’s Services to be provided.  Unless otherwise noted by Client, Consultant may rely upon 
the plans, specifications and data provided being accurate and complete; 

 
2.2. Provide all licenses, permits, and government or agency approvals that may be necessary to 

complete the Work and/or Project; 
 

2.3. Unless produced by Snyder & Associates, Inc. survey and engineering staff, provide to Consultant 
legal descriptions and acquisition plats for each parcel to be acquired, unless Client requests 
Consultant to provide said legal descriptions and acquisition plats and incorporates this request 
as a part of Consultant’s scope of work. 
 

2.4. Provide all necessary forms and/or documents to complete each acquisition and/or provide the 
services of Client’s attorney to supervise, review and approve any and all legal documents 
prepared by Consultant.   

 
2.5. Coordinate the timing and sequence of Consultant’s Services with the Services of others to the 

Project;  
 
2.6. Make interim and final decisions utilizing information supplied by Consultant. 

 
2.7. Process Council Roll Calls/Requisitions. 

 
2.8. Preform the following task for closings: Provide title opinions; prepare and distribute proceed 

checks to owners and tenants; prepare closing statements; prepare 1099 tax forms; update 
abstracts; record all pertinent documents.  

 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total compensation is a not 
to exceed fee of $2,800.00. The compensation for this supplemental agreement is to be segregated 
from the original agreement. 
 

III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall remain as specified in 
the Professional Services Agreement dated February 18, 2019.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

166

Item 20.



Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. SA-002-3182 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 

APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT. 
 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
Printed Name:  Printed Name:   Lindsay Beaman               
 
 
Title:  Title:        Business Unit Leader                       
 
 

Date:  Date:  March 31, 2020  

167

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: April 2, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement 
  Robinson Engineering Company 
  Black Hawk & Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
  City Project No. ST-000-3232 
 
Attached is the Professional Services Agreement for the Black Hawk & Black Hawk 
Southwest Watershed Assessment Project between the City of Cedar Falls and 
Robinson Engineering Company. Robinson Engineering Company was selected by the 
City of Cedar Falls Engineering Division for the Black Hawk & Black Hawk Southwest 
Watershed Assessment Project.   
 
The City is required by our Iowa Department of Natural Resources NPDES General 
Permit to implement a watershed assessment program for all watersheds within the 
corporate limits of Cedar Falls. The enclosed agreement provides for the assessment 
services needed to perform the Black Hawk & Black Hawk Southwest Watershed 
Assessment Project.  
 
The cost of this agreement is $53,611 and paid for out of the stormwater fund. This is 
the last watershed needing assessment over the next few years. These assessments 
have been funded in the five year City of Cedar Falls’ Capital Improvements Program. 
 
The Department of Public Works requests your consideration and approval of the 
Professional Services Agreement with Robinson Engineering Company for the Black 
Hawk & Black Hawk Southwest Watershed Assessment Project. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

168

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 

 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
220 CLAY STREET 
319-268-5161 

FAX 319-268-5197 

  
  

WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION 
501 E. 4TH STREET 
319-273-8633 
FAX 319-268-5566 

 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

BLACK HAWK AND BLACK HAWK SOUTHWEST 
SUBWATERSHED ASSESSMENTS 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number ST-000-3232 

  
This Agreement is made and entered by and between Robinson Engineering Company, 819 Second 
Street NE, Independence, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT" and City of Cedar Falls, 220 
Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as "CLIENT”. 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall perform professional Services (the "Services") in connection with CLIENT's 

facilities in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
II.  CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement: 
  
 (a) Appoint one or more individuals who shall be authorized to act on behalf of CONSULTANT 

and with whom CLIENT may consult at all reasonable times, and whose instructions, 
requests, and decisions will be binding upon CONSULTANT as to all matters pertaining to 
this Agreement and the performance of the parties hereunder. 

 
 (b) Use all reasonable efforts to complete the Services within the time period mutually agreed 

upon, except for reasons beyond its control, as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
 (c) Perform the Services in accordance with generally accepted professional engineering 

standards in existence at the time of performance of the Services. If during the two year 
period following the completion of Services, it is shown that there is an error in the Services 
solely as a result of CONSULTANT's failure to meet these standards, CONSULTANT shall 
re-perform such substandard Services as may be necessary to remedy such error at no 
cost to CLIENT. Since CONSULTANT has no control over local conditions, the cost of labor 
and materials, or over competitive bidding and market conditions, CONSULTANT does not 
guarantee the accuracy of any construction cost estimates as compared to contractor's bids 
or the actual cost to the CLIENT. CONSULTANT makes no other warranties either express 
or implied and the parties’ rights, liabilities, responsibilities and remedies with respect to the 
quality of Services, including claims alleging negligence, breach of warranty and breach of 
contract, shall be exclusively those set forth herein.  

169

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
 
 (d) CONSULTANT shall, if requested in writing by CLIENT, for the protection of CLIENT, 

require from all vendors and subcontractors from which CONSULTANT procures 
equipment, materials or services for the project, guarantees with respect to such 
equipment, materials and services. All such guarantees shall be made available to CLIENT 
to the full extent of the terms thereof. CONSULTANT's liability with respect to such 
equipment, and materials obtained from vendors or services from subcontractors, shall be 
limited to procuring guarantees from such vendors or subcontractors and rendering all 
reasonable assistance to CLIENT for the purpose of enforcing the same. 

 
(e) CONSULTANT will be providing estimates of costs to the CLIENT covering an extended 

period of time. CONSULTANT does not have control over any such costs, including, but not 
limited to, costs of labor, material, equipment or services furnished by others or over 
competitive bidding, marketing or negotiating conditions, or construction contractors’ 
methods of determining their prices. Accordingly, it is acknowledged and understood that 
any estimates, projections or opinions of probable project costs provided herein by 
CONSULTANT are estimates only, made on the basis of CONSULTANT’s experience and 
represent CONSULTANT’s reasonable judgment as a qualified professional. 
CONSULTANT does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual project costs will not vary 
from the opinions of probable costs prepared by CONSULTANT, and the CLIENT waives 
any and all claims that it may have against CONSULTANT as a result of any such variance.  

 
III. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CLIENT shall at such times as may be required for the successful and expeditious completion of the 

Services: 
 
 (a) Provide all criteria and information as to CLIENT’s requirements; obtain all necessary 

approvals and permits required from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over 
the project; and designate a person with authority to act on CLIENT’s behalf on all matters 
concerning the Services. 

  
 (b) Furnish to CONSULTANT all existing studies, reports and other available data pertinent to 

the Services, and obtain additional reports, data and services as may be required for the 
project. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon all such information, data and the 
results of such other services in performing its Services hereunder. 

 
IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  

The provisions of the document entitled, "Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of 
Cedar Falls," dated December 13, 2011 as revised January 31, 2017 consisting of 11 pages, 
which are attached hereto, marked Exhibit B, are hereby made a part of this Agreement as if set 
out word for word herein. 
  
CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate or certificates of insurance containing all 
coverages, endorsements and other provisions required by the Insurance Requirements set forth 
in Exhibit B. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of Exhibit B and the other terms of 
this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit B shall control. 
 

 CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy or policies that meet the provisions 
set out in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, attached hereto 
and marked Exhibit B. 

  

170

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
V. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 

PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 The provisions of the documents entitled “Standard Terms and Conditions for Contracts Between 

Contractors Who Perform Professional Services and the City of Cedar Falls,” consisting of two 
pages are incorporated into this Agreement by the Client and attached as Exhibit C. 

 
VI. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 
 Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total compensation is a 
not to exceed a fee of Fifty Three Thousand Six Hundred and Eleven Dollars ($53,611.00). 
 
CONSULTANT may bill the CLIENT monthly for services completed at the time of billing. CLIENT 
agrees to pay CONSULTANT the full amount of such invoice within thirty (30) days after receipt 
thereof. In the event CLIENT disputes any invoice item, CLIENT shall give CONSULTANT written 
notice of such disputed item within ten (10) days after receipt of invoice and shall pay to 
CONSULTANT the undisputed portion of the invoice according to the provisions hereof. CLIENT 
agrees to abide by any applicable statutory prompt pay provisions currently in effect. 

 
VII. TERMINATION 
 
 CLIENT may, with or without cause, terminate the Services at any time upon fourteen (14) days 

written notice to CONSULTANT. The obligation to provide further Services under this Agreement 
may be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days' written notice in the event of substantial 
failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the 
terminating party, providing such defaulting party has not cured such failure, or, in the event of a 
non-monetary default, commenced reasonable actions to cure such failure. In either case, 
CONSULTANT will be paid for all expenses incurred and Services rendered to the date of the 
termination in accordance with compensation terms of Article VI. 

 
VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

(a) Sealed original drawings, specifications, final project specific calculations and other 
instruments of service which CONSULTANT prepares and delivers to CLIENT pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the property of CLIENT when CONSULTANT has been 
compensated for Services rendered. CLIENT shall have the right to use such instruments 
of service solely for the purpose of the construction, operation and maintenance of the 
Facilities. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed as limiting or depriving 
CONSULTANT of its rights to use its basic knowledge and skills to design or carry out other 
projects or work for itself or others, whether or not such other projects or work are similar to 
the work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not be liable for 
any unauthorized reuse of modification of its work product. 

 
(b) Any files delivered in electronic medium may not work on systems and software different 

than those with which they were originally produced and CONSULTANT makes no 
warranty as to the compatibility of these files with any other system or software. Because of 
the potential degradation of electronic medium over time, in the event of a conflict between 
the sealed original drawings and the electronic files, the sealed drawings will govern. 

 
 
IX. MEANS AND METHODS 
 

(a) CONSULTANT shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety 

171

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
measures and programs including enforcement of Federal and State safety requirements, 
in connection with construction work performed by CLIENT's construction contractors. Nor 
shall CONSULTANT be responsible for the supervision of CLIENT's construction 
contractors, subcontractors or of any of their employees, agents and representatives of 
such contractors; or for inspecting machinery, construction equipment and tools used and 
employed by contractors and subcontractors on CLIENT's construction projects and shall 
not have the right to stop or reject work without the thorough evaluation and approval of the 
CLIENT. In no event shall CONSULTANT be liable for the acts or omissions of CLIENT's 
construction contractors, subcontractors or any persons or entities performing any of the 
construction work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out construction work under 
contracts with CLIENT. 

 
X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with respect to the Services to be performed 

hereunder. Neither CONSULTANT nor its subcontractors, nor the employees of either, shall be 
deemed to be the servants, employees, or agents of CLIENT. 

 
XI. PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
 Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, CONSULTANT shall have no legal responsibility or 

liability for any and all pre-existing contamination. "Pre-existing contamination" is any hazardous or 
toxic substance present at the site or sites concerned which was not brought onto such site or sites 
by CONSULTANT. CLIENT agrees to release CONSULTANT from and against any and all liability 
to the CLIENT which may in any manner arise in any way directly or indirectly caused by such pre-
existing contamination except if such liability arises from CONSULTANT's sole negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

 
 CLIENT shall, at CLIENT’s sole expense and risk, arrange for handling, storage, transportation, 

treatment and delivery for disposal of pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall be solely 
responsible for obtaining a disposal site for such material. CLIENT shall look to the disposal facility 
and/or transporter for any responsibility or liability arising from improper disposal or transportation of 
such waste. CONSULTANT shall not have or exert any control over CLIENT in CLIENT’s 
obligations or responsibilities as a generator in the storage, transportation, treatment or disposal of 
any pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall complete and execute any governmentally required 
forms relating to regulated activities including, but not limited to generation, storage, handling, 
treatment, transportation, or disposal of pre-existing contamination.  

 
 For CONSULTANT's Services requiring drilling, boring, excavation or soils sampling, CLIENT shall 

approve selection of the contractors to perform such services, all site locations, and provide 
CONSULTANT with all necessary information regarding the presence of underground hazards, 
utilities, structures and conditions at the site.  
 

XII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
 If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, the breach of this Agreement and if the dispute cannot be 

settled through negotiation, then the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation. In the event CONSULTANT or the CLIENT desires to mediate any dispute, that party 
shall notify the other party in writing of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the parties are unable 
to resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, such dispute shall be 
submitted for mediation in accordance with the procedures and rules of the American Arbitration 
Association (or any successor organization) then in effect. The deadline for submitting the dispute 
to mediation can be changed if the parties mutually agree in writing to extend the time between 
receipt of notice and submission to mediation. The expenses of the mediator shall be shared 50 
percent by CONSULTANT and 50 percent by the CLIENT. This requirement to seek mediation shall 

172

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
be a condition required before filing an action at law or in equity. However, prior to or during the 
negotiations or the mediation either party may initiate litigation that would otherwise be barred by a 
statute of limitations, and CONSULTANT may pursue any property liens or other rights it may have 
to obtain security for the payment of its invoices. 

 
 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and any action at law or other 

judicial proceeding arising from this Agreement shall be instituted in Black Hawk County District 
Court, Waterloo, Iowa. 

 
XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 (a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and 

supersedes any oral or written representations, understandings, proposals, or 
communications heretofore entered into by or on account of the parties and may not be 
changed, modified, or amended except in writing signed by the parties hereto. In the event 
of any conflict between this contract document and any of the exhibits hereto, the terms 
and conditions of Exhibit C shall control. In the event of any conflict among the exhibits, 
Exhibit C shall control. 

 
 (b) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 (c) CONSULTANT may subcontract any portion of the Services to a subcontractor approved 

by CLIENT. In no case shall CLIENT's approval of any subcontract relieve CONSULTANT 
of any of its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
 (d) In the event CLIENT uses a purchase order form to administer this Agreement, the use of 

such form shall be for convenience purposes only, and any typed provision in conflict with 
the terms of this Agreement and all preprinted terms and conditions contained in or on such 
forms shall be deemed stricken and null and void. 

 
 (e) This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than CLIENT and 

CONSULTANT and does not create any third party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 
 

(f) Except as may be explicitly set forth above, nothing contained in this Agreement or its 
exhibits limits the rights and remedies, including remedies related to damages, of either 
party that are available to either party under the law. 

  

173

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written 
below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 

By:  By:   
 
 
Printed Name:  Robert M. Green  Printed Name:            Monica Smith      
 
 
Title: Mayor of Cedar Falls  Title:         President  
 
 
Date:  Date:              April 1, 2020  
 
 
 
  

174

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
 

Exhibit A 

 
 

BLACK HAWK AND BLACK HAWK SOUTHWEST SUBWATERSHED ASSESSMENTS 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number ST-000- 3232 

 
02/11/20 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

This project will assess the current conditions of the stormwater flows within the proposed Black Hawk 

Subwatershed and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed in the City of Cedar Falls.  The final result of this work 

will be a written report detailing the information obtained and the analysis completed on all data that will be 

compiled.   

 

GIS Assessment:  For this task, the following categories will be analyzed using available information:  Location 

and area, Hydrology, Topography, Soils, Population, Ownership, Historical Land Use, Current Land Use, 

Current Zoning, Geology, Climate, and Threatened & Endangered Species.  Where applicable, maps and/or 

graphs will be produced to illustrate the information being compiled. 

 

Physical Assessment:  For this task, the physical health of the creek will be assessed using the RASCAL  (Rapid 

Assessment of Stream Conditions Along Length) Protocol.  This analysis will look at a number of factors, 

including:  the observed land uses on either side of the creek, any livestock access, the amount of canopy cover, 

bank stability, and any storm water point sources.  This information will be compiled into easily understood 

maps and tabulations for further analysis.  This assessment will be completed once during the project duration.  

Right of entry forms will be assembled by and sent out to all residence with creek water flowing across their 

property by Robinson Staff. 

 

Chemical Assessment:  For this task, the chemical health of the creek will be assessed.  Initially, any existing 

chemical testing results will be compiled.  Then, two or three permanent testing locations will be located within 

the public right-of-way in the watershed.  These sites will then be monitored for one year.  Due to the size of the 

watershed, it is recommended that no more than two sites be identified for laboratory testing.  All identified 

testing locations will be monitored using IOWATER protocols, while twice a month at one or two locations 

water samples will be obtained and sent to a laboratory to determine levels of Ammonia, Chlorides, E.Coli, 

Nitrates, Nitrites, and Total Phosphate in the water.  Additionally, for two months in the Spring, a total of four 

samples at the two lab testing sites will be obtained for herbicides and pesticide testing. 

 

Social Assessment:  This task would include assembling a simple survey to be sent to a select portion of the 

land owners in the watershed.  (It is anticipated that there are about 100 property owners within the watershed.  

Therefore approximately 100 surveys will be mailed to randomly selected property owners.)  This survey will 

be used to determine what the land owners understand about the watershed they are located in and the steps that 

the residents may be willing to take to conserve storm water on their property. 

 

Analysis of Results:  All information will be analyzed to identify areas of concern and priority repair areas.  A 

statistical analysis of any mathematical results will be produced for reference.  A WinSLAMM Analysis will be 

completed on the watershed to determine what BMPs should be constructed within the watershed to reduce 

sediment loading and improve in-stream habitat. 

 

Conclusions/Recommendations:  This task will include compiling a proposed plan of improvement schedule for 

the watershed, reviewing the statistical analysis of all water test results, and providing an overall conclusion for 

the assessment.  The final assessment report will be produced during this task.   

 

  

175

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
02/11/20 

COST OF SERVICES 

A.  Manhour Estimate: 

Description 

Manhour Estimate 

Senior 

Engineer 

Land 

Surveyor 
Tech Admin Total 

Black Hawk Creek      

GIS Assessment 48  20  68 

Physical Assessment 24  16  40 

Chemical Assessment 10  16  26 

Social Assessment 24  10  34 

Analysis and Report 80  24  104 

Black Hawk Southwest      

GIS Assessment 48  20  68 

Social Assessment 8  16  24 

Analysis and Report 20  8  28 

      

Total 262  130  392 

 

B.  Labor Cost:              $47,726.00 

 

  Senior Engineer  262  X 154.25=  40,413.50 

  Land Surveyor      0  X 125.00 =           0.00 

  Technician   130  X   56.25=     7,312.50 

  Administration      0  X   10.00 =           0.00 

           47,726.00 

 

C.  Direct Project Cost:       (rounded)        $5,885.00 

 Chemical testing conducted at one site at a rate of twice a month for 8 months $3,496.96 

  Nitrates and Nitrites -- $29.53 per test * 8 months * 2 sites * 2 times    944.96 

  Total Phosphate -- $26.68 per test * 8 months * 2 sites *2 times    853.76 

  Ammonia -- $17.01 per test * 8 months * 2 sites * 2 times     544.32 

  E. Coli -- $22.68 per test * 8 months * 2 sites * 2 times     725.76 

  Chlorides -- $13.38 per test * 8 months * 2 sites * 2 times     428.16 

 Chemical testing conducted at one site at a rate of twice a month for 2 months $2,336.96 

  Herbicides -- $146.06 per test * 2 months * 2 sites * 2 times   1168.48 

  Pesticides -- $146.06 per test * 2 months * 2 sites * 2 times   1168.48 

 Postage for Social Survey Mailing (approx. 50 property owners)   $     50.00 

 

 

D.  Estimated Project Cost:              $53,611.00 

 

 

 

  

176

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 

Exhibit B 
 

Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessments 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number ST-000-3232 
 

Original12/13/11 
Revision 01/31/2017 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who perform work for the City of 
Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this document shall be defined as the general contractor, 
artisan contractor, or design contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under 
contract. 
 

1. All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer authorized 
by law to do business in Iowa. All insurance policies shall be companies 
satisfactory to the City and have a rating of A-, VII or better in the current A.M. 
Best Rating Guide. 

 

2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the Cancellation & 
Material Change Endorsement. A copy of this endorsement is attached in Exhibit 
1. 

 

3. Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa for the coverage required in Exhibit 1. Such Certificates shall include 
copies of the following endorsements: 

 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
 

b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See 
Exhibit 1 

c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 
 

Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized 
representative from an Insurer duly licensed to transact business at the location 
of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first payment. 
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for 
all subcontractors and sub-sub contractors who perform work or services 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 

4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 

5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of these 
requirements by the City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the required 
insurance shall be considered a material breach of this agreement. 

177

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall constitute a 

default under this Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to terminate this 
Contract for cause and/or purchase said insurance at Contractor’s expense. 

 

7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum coverage/limits or 
greater, if required by law or other legal agreement; as per Exhibit 1: 

 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. All 
deviations or exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general liability form 
CG 001 shall be clearly identified and shall be subject to the review and approval 
of the City. 

 

 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years following 
substantial completion of the Work to cover liability arising from the products-
completed operations hazard and liability assumed under an insured contract. 

 

 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form attached. 
 

 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its 
employees, its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, 
employees shall be named as an additional insured on General Liability Policies 
for all classes of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an additional 
insured including ongoing and completed operations coverage equivalent to: ISO 
CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 37 07 04** 

 
* ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Scheduled Person or Organization” 
 
** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or 
Contractors – Completed Operations” 

 

8. Errors & Omissions: If the contract’s scope of services includes design work or 
other professional services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage 
for errors, omissions and other wrongful acts or omissions (except for intentional 
acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services performed by 
Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions coverage 
for a period commencing no later than the date of the contract, and continuing for 
a period of no less than 2 years from the date of completion of all work 
completed or services performed under the contract. The limit of liability shall not 
be less than $1,000,000. 

 

9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not contain 
the standard ISO separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially similar 
clause, they shall be endorsed to provide cross-liability coverage. 

178

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
 

10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not 
represent that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect 
Contractor and such coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on 
Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this Contract. The 
City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that 
otherwise specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums 
payable shall be added to the bid price. 

 

11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision: To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
the Contractor agrees to defend (for all non-professional claims), indemnify, and 
hold harmless the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, 
directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including any and all 
outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages which may be 
asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its 
elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not limited to, damages 
arising by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and property 
damages, which arises out of or is in any way connected or associated with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, 
omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, 
subcontractors or others working on behalf of the Contractor. It is the intention of 
the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, 
directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa shall not be liable or in any way responsible for the injury, damage, liability, 
loss or expense incurred by the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor due to accidents, 
mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in person or property resulting 
from the work and/or services performed by the Contractor pursuant to the 
provisions of this contract, except for and to the extent caused by the negligence 
of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries 
which may result to any person or property by reason of or in connection with the 
work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions or 
negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others 
working on behalf of the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa for all damages caused to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting 
from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, employees, 
subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out 
of such errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 

179

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this 
contract will be performed and supervised by adequately trained and qualified 
personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause its officers, employees, 
subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 

12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby 
releases the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its 
directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the Contractor or 
anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of subrogation or 
otherwise, for any loss or damage to property caused by fire or any other 
casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury to Contractor’s employees. This 
provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with respect to loss 
or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out of the work 
performed under this contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance (except for 
Professional Liability) shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that 
such release shall not adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice the 
right of the Contractor to recover thereunder. 

 

Completion Checklist 
 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
  

180

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit  $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 
  

 

Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000  
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned and hired 
vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if the 
Umbrella/Excess is not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same endorsements as 
required of the primary policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 
 

 
  

181

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 
 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its 

employees, its boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, 

employees, are included as Additional Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 

2010 07 04 or equivalent, and completed operations CG 2037 07 04 or equivalent. See 

Specimens. 

This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing with 

any other insurance or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, whether 

other available coverage be primary, contributing or excess. 

 
 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly agrees and states 
that the purchase of this policy and the including of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa as an 
Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of governmental immunity available to 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may 
be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of insurance shall 
cover only those claims not subject to the defense of governmental immunity under the Code of 
Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be responsible 
for asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so at any time and shall do so 
upon the timely written request of the insurance carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement 
shall prevent the carrier from asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage under this policy 
and the insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and benefits accruing to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa under this policy for reasons of governmental immunity unless and until a 
court of competent jurisdiction has ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity 
asserted by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
agree that the above preservation of governmental immunities shall not otherwise change or 
alter the coverage available under the policy. 

182

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
 
 

CANCELLATION AND MATERIAL CHANGES ENDORSEMENT 
 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction in coverage 
and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-payment of premium shall be sent to: Risk 
Management Office, City of Cedar Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. 
This endorsement supersedes the standard cancellation statement on the Certificate of 
Insurance to which this endorsement is attached.  Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 
days advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage and/or limits, 
and 10 days advance written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 

 
  

183

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 

 

$1,000,000 

184

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
  

185

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

186

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 

 

187

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
    

Exhibit C 
 

BLACK HAWK AND BLACK HAWK SOUTHWEST 
SUBWATERSHED ASSESSMENTS 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number ST – 000 – 3232  

 

  2/9/12 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS 
WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors who 
perform work or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, “Contractor,” as 
used in this document, includes an engineer, an architect, and any other design professional 
providing professional services to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, under a contract (but excludes 
construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed by an 
authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services to be 
performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, or employees, 
shall be deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable federal, state 
and local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies available to 
it at law or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
incapable of being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no provision 
shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights or 
obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent may be 
withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature extend 
beyond the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract. 
 
 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be construed 
in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws of the State of 
Iowa, excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that the exclusive jurisdiction 

188

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
and venue shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County, and in no other jurisdiction 
or location, and shall not be removed to federal court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the 
right to trial by jury and agree to submit all disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree 
that no disputes under this Contract shall be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be 
submitted to mediation by mutual consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Exhibit B, shall constitute a default under this 
Contract. 
 
 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no circumstances 
be obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other party, arising out of 
such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than thirty 
(30) days from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within thirty (30) days, 
the City shall pay interest thereon at the rate provided for by Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, 
computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor 
documents or records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records under 
the Iowa Open Records Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have no 
responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the 
Contractor or any other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether consequential, 
indirect, special, or punitive damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be limited to 
any specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by the City to the 
Contractor under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided for in the Insurance 
Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Exhibit B. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any other 
party shall conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, Exhibit B. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by Iowa 
law, on the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the Contractor or 
other party under the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved by the 
City Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor and City Clerk of 
the City. 
 
 
 19. Warranties.  Contractor represents and warrants that all services furnished to the 
City under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike manner, in accordance 
with the degree of skill and care that is required by current, good and sound practices applicable 
to the Contractor’s industry or profession, and as otherwise required by applicable law. 
 

189

Item 21.



Robinson Engineering Company        Black Hawk and Black Hawk Southwest Subwatershed Assessment 
Project No.     4265        Cedar Falls, Iowa 
                                                                                                               City Project No. ST – 000 – 3232 

 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other party for 
delays in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from such delays, 
that may result from acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, extraordinary weather 
conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control or 
contemplation of either party.  Each party will take reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of 
any force majeure. 

 

190

Item 21.



     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: March 23, 2020 

SUBJECT:      Voluntary Annexation of Territory to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
    
 
As you may recall, City Council approved applications for the voluntary annexation of 
territory to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa on August 19, 2019. 
 
On February 12, 2020, the City Development Board of the State of Iowa issued a Final 
Order approving the annexation application. The 30-day appeal period has now run, 
and the City Development Board has filed the annexation proceedings with both the 
Iowa Secretary of State and the Black Hawk County Recorder. 
 
Iowa Code Section 312.3(4) provides that the mayor and city council of any city which 
has annexed territory since the last available federal census shall certify to the 
Treasurer of the State of Iowa the actual population of the annexed territory, as 
determined by the last certified federal census of said territory. The purpose of this 
certification is to modify the apportionment of Iowa road use tax funds to the city, based 
upon the population of the annexed territory, until the next federal census, which will be 
later this year. 
 
Accordingly, enclosed please find a proposed Resolution which certifies that the 
population of the annexed territory as of the 2010 federal census was twenty three (23) 
persons. 
 
It is recommended that City Council approves the Resolution, and then after it is signed 
by the Mayor and City Clerk, the City Clerk should send a certified copy of the 
Resolution to the Treasurer of the State of Iowa. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Maria Brownell, Ahlers and Cooney, P.C. 
      

191

Item 22.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA (319) 268-5160 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION CERTIFYING TO THE TREASURER OF THE 

STATE OF IOWA THE ACTUAL POPULATION OF 

TERRITORY ANNEXED TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA, WHICH LIES WITHIN TWO (2) MILES OF THE 

CORPORATE BOUNDARY OF THE CITY OF HUDSON, IOWA 

 

 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 21,663, adopted August 19, 2019, the City 

Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, approved Applications for Voluntary 

Annexation of certain territory legally described on Attachment A, to the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, filed by the following parties: 

 

1. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; 

2. Dennis and Linda Nebbe; 

3. Jacob and Jessica Nauholz; 

4. M. Lathon and Linda Jernigan; 

5. Bruce and Marilyn Baridon; 

6. Marvin and Jean Mc Elvain; 

7. Rebecca Dickinson; 

8. Scott and Debra Knudtson; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls filed a request for approval of said annexation 

applications with the City Development Board of the State of Iowa, which issued a Final 

Order in a case styled, In the Matter of the City of Cedar Falls Voluntary Annexation 

Within the Urbanized Area of the City of Hudson, Case No. UA20-03/Cedar Falls, on 

February 13, 2020, approving these annexation applications; and 

  

WHEREAS, no appeal was filed within thirty (30) days of the date of the Final 

Order filed by the City Development Board approving the voluntary annexation petition 

submitted by the City of Cedar Falls; and 

 

192

Item 22.



WHEREAS, the City Development Board has filed a copy of the annexation 

proceedings with the Iowa Secretary of State and has recorded a copy with the Black 

Hawk County Recorder, thereby completing the annexation, as provided in Section 

368.20(2), Code of Iowa; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 312.3(4), Code of Iowa (2019), provides that in any case 

where a city has annexed any territory, the mayor and city council shall certify to the 

Treasurer of the State of Iowa the actual population of such annexed territory as 

determined by the last certified federal census of said territory, whereupon the 

apportionment of road use tax funds shall be based upon the population of said city as 

modified by the certification of the population of the annexed territory until the next 

federal census enumeration; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the actual population of the annexed territory as determined by the 

certified 2010 federal census was twenty three (23) persons, and, as required by Section 

312.3(4), Code of Iowa, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, finds it 

appropriate to certify the actual population of said annexed territory to the Treasurer of 

the State of Iowa. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, does hereby certify to 

the Treasurer of the State of Iowa that the actual population of the annexed territory 

legally described on Attachment A, pages 1 and 2, as determined by the 2010 certified 

federal census of said territory, was twenty three (23) persons. 

 

2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to deliver a certified copy 

of this Resolution, along with Attachment A, pages 1 and 2, to the Treasurer of the State 

of Iowa, as provided for in Section 312.3(4), Code of Iowa (2019). 

 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of April, 2020.  

 

 

       _______________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

  193

Item 22.



CERTIFICATE 

 

STATE OF IOWA 

 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

) 

) SS 

) 

 
  

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that 

the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. 

_______________ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of 

____________________, 2020. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2020. 

 

 

  

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

  

194

Item 22.



ATTACHMENT “A” 

 

City of Cedar Falls: 

Northwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, 

except the North 1,200 feet of the West 800 feet thereof. 

North one-half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., 

Black Hawk County, Iowa, except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except 

Parcel ‘A’ of Plat of Survey Doc. # 2017-02916. 

Dennis & Linda Nebbe: 

West 800 feet of the North 1,200 feet of the Northwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 

West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

Jacob & Jessica Nauholz: 

West 240 feet of the North 550 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 

West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

M. Lathon & Linda Jernigan: 

East 240 feet of the West 480 feet of the North 550 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, 

Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

Bruce & Marilyn Baridon: 

East 283 feet of the West 763 feet of the North 260.77 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, 
Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 
 

Marvin & Jean McElvain: 

East 280 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the North 253 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, 

Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

Rebecca Dickinson: 

East 603 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the South 150 feet of the North 403 feet except the East 283 feet 

of the West 763 feet of the North 7.77 feet of the South 150 feet of the North 403 feet and the East 40 

feet of the West 803 feet of the North 253 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, 

Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

Scott & Debra Knudtson: 

East 603 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the South 147 feet of the North 550 feet of the Northeast 

Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

195

Item 22.



De n
nis 
& L
ind a
 N e
bbe
 Pro
pe r
ty

!(SW
1/4

City
 of 
Ce d
ar F
alls
 Pro
pe r
ty

Ce d ar Falls
City Lim its

Ja
co
b &
 Je
ss
ica

Na
uh
olz
 Pr
op
ert
y

La
tho
n &
 Li
nd
a

Je
rni
ga
n P
rop
ert
y

De bra Dre ye r &
Scott Knud tson Prope rty

R ebecca Dickinson
Prope rty

Marvin & Je an
McElvain
Prope rty

Bruce  & Marilyn
Barid on
Prope rty

!(NE
1/4

!(Ó28273334

!(Sec.
34

!(NW
1/4

Ve nture  Way

Technolog y Pkwy

De
ve
lop
me
nt 
Dr

S U
nio
n R
d

Capital Way

W Viking  R d

I

Date: 3/23/2020

0 540 1,080270
Fe e t

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
Voluntary Annexation Map

1 inch = 540 fe e t

Annexation Property Description:
N orthw e st Corne r and  N orth one -half of the  Southw e st Quarte r of Section 34, Township
89, Rang e  14 We st of the  5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, e xce pt the  We st 231 fe e t
of the  South 660 fe e t the re of and  furthe r exce pt Parce l ‘A’ of Plat of Survey Doc. # 2017-
02916.
N orth 550 fe e t of the  We st 1,083 fe e t of the  N orthe ast Corne r Quarte r of Section 34,
Township 89, Rang e  14 We st of the  5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa.

196

Item 22.



     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: March 23, 2020 

SUBJECT:      Ward and Precinct Boundary Adjustment – 2020 Cedar Falls Voluntary 
Annexation 

    
 
As you may recall, City Council approved applications for the voluntary annexation of 
territory to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa on August 19, 2019. On February 12, 2020, the 
City Development Board of the State of Iowa issued a Final Order approving the 
annexation application. The 30-day appeal period has now run, and the City 
Development Board has filed the annexation proceedings with both the Iowa Secretary 
of State and the Black Hawk County Recorder. Attached is a map that shows the 
adjusted changes as a result of the annexation. 
 
Due to this change in the corporate limits, the City must now take action to update the 
ward and precinct boundaries to reflect this new area of land that is now within Cedar 
Falls. The land area that was recently annexed is directly adjacent to Ward 2 Precinct 2. 
Therefore, the Ward 2 description will need to be revised, as well as the description for 
Ward 2 Precinct 2, in order to include this new area in those descriptions. 
 
It is recommended that City Council set a date for public hearing on this matter for April 
20, 2020. It is also recommended to amend Section 8-1 of the Code of Ordinances 
pertaining to the description of Ward 2 and Ward 2 Precinct 2 in order to include the 
aforementioned annexed land to the city. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Maria Brownell, Ahlers and Cooney, P.C. 
      

197

Item 23.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BOUNDARIES FOR 

WARDS AND PRECINCTS WITHIN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

TO INCORPORATE RECENTLY ANNEXED TERRITORY 

 

 

WHEREAS, a proposed ordinance amending the boundaries for wards and precincts within the 

City of Cedar Falls to incorporate recently annexed territory has been submitted to the City Council of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa; and 

 

WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, to consider said proposed ordinance; and  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 20th day of April, 2020, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

to consider the proposed ordinance amending the boundaries for wards and precincts within the City of 

Cedar Falls to incorporate recently annexed territory, and the City Clerk is hereby directed to publish 

said notice of said public hearing. 

 

ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2020. 

 

   

  Robert M. Green, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

  

198

Item 23.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2020. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2020. 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

199

Item 23.



Greenhill Rd

Ridgeway Ave Ridgeway Ave

Hudson Rd

1st St

1st St

University Ave

Lincoln St

Wa
ver

ly R
d

W Airline Hwy

Center St

Ce
nte

r S
t

Hudson Rd

1st St

Lincoln St

University Ave

Greenhill Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

Lone Tree Rd

De
ere

 Rd

18th St

Dunkerton Rd

S U
nio

n R
d

18th St

Viking Rd

Rainbow Dr

Co
lleg

e S
t

12th St

University Ave

27th St

Lev
ers

ee 
Rd

N U
nio

n R
d

Ma
in 

St

Waterloo Rd

Cedar Heights Dr

S M
ain

 St

12th St

Viking Rd

Ma
in 

St

Cedar Heights Dr

Viking Rd

Viking Rd

Cedar Heights Dr

Orchard Dr

4T75

4D17

4D18

4D19

4V14

Bluegrass C t

Bl ue
g ra

ss
Cir

Wild R ye Way

"!58

"!27

"!27

"!27

"!27

"!58

"!57

"!57

"!58

"!27

"!27

Fra
nk

lin
 St

Grand Blvd

5th St

Blu
ff S

t

Ch
ris

kin
 Rd Brookside Dr

Prairie View Rd

Pro
gre

ss 
Av

e

Ch
an

ce
llo

r D
r

Ann
Ave

Flynn Dr

Laverne Ln

Pa
nth

er 
LnSpringbrook Dr

Ka
ra 

Dr

Athens
Ct

E 14th
Ct

17th
St

Hacienda
Ct

Opal Ln

Bla
ckh

aw
k

Vlg

Carol Ct

RiverRidge Ln

Cherr
ywood

Pl

AliceAve

Horty St

Knoke
Pl

Leg
acy

 Ln

Gra
nd

vie
w

Ct

Lo
ng

vie
w

Ct

Ka
nsa

s S
t

Me
lro

se
Ct

Em
era

ld Rd

He
dg

ew
oo

d
Cir

Illin
ois

 St

Eth
an

 Ct

Cro
ss

Cre
ek 

Dr

High
St

Grant St

Maucker
Cir

Wh
ite

Wa
y

S Forest
Rd

Jade
Rd

Floral Ct

Ind
ian

a S
t

WoodlawnAve
Superior

Way

Orchard
Pl

25th
St

Andover
Ct

Eagle Ridge Rd

Ba
rba

ra
Dr

Sa
ma

nth
a

Cir

Beach St

6th St

Bro
ns

on
 Ct

Es
tat

e
Dr

26th St

Meadow
Park Dr

Ch
ap

ma
n

Ct

Stanwood Dr

Ida St

Ho
we St

Co
tta

ge
Ln

Ga
llo

wa
y

Av
e

Tilton
Dr

Onawa
Dr

Hil
l C

t

Briarwood
Hills Dr

Ke
lly Ct

Ge
ne

vie
ve

Gram
Ct

Gre
ele

y S
t

A S
t

B S
t

Linda Dr

Idaho Rd

Wa
lm

art
Dr

Sunray
Dr

DruryLn

Tun
is

Cir

Hig
hg

ate
 Ln

Market
St

Goldenrod Way

Faithway Dr

Woodland
Dr

Lau
rie

Av
e

Rosemary Dr

Del Matro
Rd

Walters Pond Pl

Mustang Rd

Irv
ing

 St

Fer
n

Av
e

Horizon
Dr

Concord Cir

Cedar St

Blackhawk
Ln

Sta
nle

y S
t

Elm Dr

19th St

Arizona
Rd

Utah
Rd

Wi
nte

rbe
rry

Dr

Ke
nn

ed
y

Av
e

Seerley Blvd

Sh
irle

y S
t

Cyclone Dr

Ore
llan

a
Ave

Wi
llia

ms
on

 Av
e

Hig
hv

iew Ct

Douglas
St

Edgewood St

Elm
wo

od
Av

e

Min
ne

so
ta 

St

Bre
ntw

oo
d D

r

Meadow
View Cir

Ho
lid

ay 
Rd

Theimer
St

Evergreen
Ln Sta

rlit
e

Blv
d

Jes
sic

a L
n

Ch
ad

wic
k R

d

Shawnee
Rd

Sands
Ave

Patterson
Ln

Mathew DrHarriet Ln

Co
ne

flo
we

r
Pk

wy

Jill Dr
Mark Dr
Jodi Dr

Jen
nif

er 
Ln

He
len

 Rd

Green Ave

Shelden Ave

Alden Ave

Am
ity

 Dr

Bir
ds

all 
Dr

Tim
oth

y S
t

Redeker Dr

Sh
elle

y L
n

Meadow
Ln

Loma St

Sc
og

gin St

30th St

Sa
ble

 Ln

Tif
fan

y L
n

Greenhill
Cir

Westgate
Ave

Me
ad

ow
lar

k L
n

WestwoodDr

Linden
Ave

MaCallan
Ln

Chateau
Ct

Glo
ria

 St

Ka
spe

nd
 Pl

S Park Rd

Cooley St

Ma
gn

olia
 Dr

12th St

LeC
lair

 St

29th St

Feather

Ridge Dr

Fieldstone
Blvd

Glen
Oaks Dr

Joy St

Rocklyn St
Westview

St
Rosewood

Dr
Cadam Ct

Maple St

Parkway
Ave

Wo
od

rid
ge

Dr

Sta
te 

St

Be
lle 

Av
e

Bertchwood

Colorado

Lantz Ave

Jay Ln

Qu
esa

da 
Ct

Granite Ridge Rd

As
hla

nd
 Av

e

Hunter Dr

Mis
sou

ri S
t

Po
ss

um
 Rd

Ca
rria

ge
 Ln

Tomahawk
Ln

Minnehaha
Ln

Co
rdu

roy
 Dr

Parsley Dr

Timber Cove Dr

Wembly Rd

Prairie St

McKinley St

An
dre

a D
r

Frontier Rd

Gib
son

 St

Cottonwood Ln

Ba
ker

 Dr
Fo

rre
st 

Rd

Pic
tur

esq
ue

Dr

Ce
ltic

 Ct

Dako
ta S

t

Bre
nto

n D
r

Winters Dr

Whitetail Dr

Fjo
rd 

Dr

Ca
lifo

rni
a S

t

Lindale Rd

Newland Dr

Ste
wa

rt L
n

Hiawatha Rd

Sw
eet

Ba
sil 

Ln

Cottage Row Ln

Ro
os

eve
lt S

t

Lo
ng

vie
w D

r

Drynan
Dr

Iris Dr

Oster Pkwy

Win dingR idge Rd

Lau
rin

da
Dr

Co
lleg

e S
t

Thresher Ct

Wa
rw

ick
 Dr

Ba
rrin

gto
n

Dr

Ad
am

s S
t

Austin Way

Windsor Dr

Jac
lyn

 St

Covey Ct

Ed
die

 St

Quail Hollow Ln

Hic
ko

ry 
Ln

Ca
rey

 Dr
Gla

cie
r D

r

Bonita Blvd

Falcon Ln

Western Ave

Da
ina

 Dr

De
ena

 Dr

Vin
e S

t

An
gie

 Dr

Pa
rkg

ate
 Rd

Ba
rne

tt D
r

Da
ma

scu
s D

r

No
rse

 Dr

Beaver Rd

Cobblestone Ct

Ca
mb

rid
ge

 Av
e

Ste
rlin

g L
n

Fandre Dr

Stratford Ct

Cre
stv

iew
 Dr

Bir
ch

 St

Ryan Dr

Oxford Ln
Coventry Ln
Yorkshire Dr

Joanne St

Ch
err

yw
oo

d D
r

Ga
s L

igh
t D

r

Pe
arl

 St

Ru
sse

ll D
r

Northview
Ln

Div
isio

n S
t

Po
cah

on
tas

 Rd

Maverick Ave

Fra
nc

is S
t

Edw
ard

s A
ve

Pleasant Dr

31st St

Hazelwood Ln

Butternut Ln

Hilton Dr

Continental Dr

Prair ie Rd

Re
dw

oo
d L

n

Hil
lcr

est
 Dr

Elm St

Dr

Orc
ha

rd 
Hil

l D
r

Camden St

Concord St
Saratoga St

Montclair St

Scranton St

Columbia S t

Meado w Ln

Country

Viking Plaza Dr

Co
lum

bin
e D

r

Lloyd Ln

Midway Dr

Timberledge Dr

Acorn Ln

Ma
riu

s D
r

Ap
ple

wo
od

 Ln

De
lta 

Dr

He
art

lan
d H

ills
 Dr

Paddington Dr

28th St

Viking Pl

Au
tum

n L
n

Newman Ave

Co
lum

bia Dr

Fir
esi

de
 Dr

Clair St

Tre
nto

n A
ve

Danish Dr

Hig
hla

nd

Cardinal Dr

Shocker Rd

Oak
lan

d A
ve

9th St
10th St

Richard Rd

He
art

hs
ide

 Dr

Beech Ave

16th St

Ce
dar

 Cr
est

 Dr

S Ridge Dr

Tilb
ury

 Rd

Castle St
Ala

me
da

 St

Huntington Rd

Oh
io 

St

Ell
en

Alvarado Ave

Pa
rris

h S
t

Fo
ur 

Se
aso

ns
 Dr

Berry Hill Rd

Longview St

Mil
len

ium
 Dr

Ca
raw

ay
 Ln

We
dg

ew
oo

d D
r

Cordoba Ave

5th St
Blu

eb
ell 

Rd

Pro
du

cti
on

 Dr

PE
 Ce

nte
r D

r

Quail Ridge Rd

Sunnyside Dr

Mc
Cla

in 
Dr

Val
ley

 Pa
rk 

Dr

Lake St

Madison St

Spruce

Technology Pkwy

Pa
nth

er 
Pk

wy

Westminster Dr

Ridgeway

Ln

Technolo gy P kwy

Mo
rris

on
 Ln

Winter
Ridge Ln

Sp
rin

g
Val

ley
 Ln

Continental
Acc

Sapphire Rd

Me
mo

ria
l

Av
e

Oak
St

Poplar Hollow Ln

Cedar
Hill
Rd

Linden
St

Timberledge
Pl

Willow Ave

Thomas
St

Co
ron

ado
Ct

Jo
rda

n S
t

RiverBluff Dr

Flying
Cloud Ln

Willow
Bend Rd

Sy
mo

ns
 Rd

Lu
ke 

St

Su
ma

c A
ve

Pin
e S

t

Higby Dr

Laurel
Cir

Co
lle

ge
 StHarvest Ln

Boxwood Dr

Wellington Dr

Fai
rvi

ew
 Dr

Ad
dis

on
 Dr

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Ac
e P

l

Four Winds Dr

As
pen

 Dr

Valley High Dr

Balboa Ave

Primrose

Pri
nc

eto
n A

ve

Pheasant Dr

Vir
gil

 St

Vera Way

Wisconsin St

Ne
ola

 St

Venture Way

Waterbury Dr

Bergstrom Blvd

11th St

Riverside Dr

Me
rne

r A
ve

Ea
st 

St

DrDr

Dr

Fle
ur 

Dr

Tita
n T

rl

Ce
ntr

al A
ve

Five Seasons Blvd

Gr
ov

e S
t

Commerce Dr

Wi
llo

w L
n

En
ter

pri
se

 Dr

Div
isio

n S
t

Performance Dr

Savannah Park Rd

De
wit

t R
d

Big
 W

oo
ds

 Rd

Elmridge Dr

Campus St

Athens Dr

Ironwood Dr

S Court D
r

Hyacinth Dr

Pendleton Dr

Sunset Blvd

Nordic Ridge Dr

Capital Way

Quail Run Ln

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Calumett Dr

Holmes Dr

Parker St

Lak
evi

ew
  D

r

Pin Oak Dr

Brandilynn Blvd

Loren Dr

Cy
pre

ss 
Av

e

Da
llas

 Dr

Heritage Rd

Apollo St

Abraham Dr

Kn
oll

 Ri
dg

e D
r

Ea
stp

ark
 Rd

Dr

7th St

Greenhill Dr

Starview Dr

Wynnewood
Dr

19th St

Bo
uld

er 
Dr

Skyview Dr

Lake  Ridge Dr
Vic

tor
y D

r

23rd St

Tuc
so

n D
r

20th St

22nd St

21st St

Independence St

Cla
rk 

     
     

     
    

Dr

Carlton Dr

17th St

E Main St

Melrose Dr

Gre
yh

ou
nd

 Dr

15th St
14th St
13th St

Green Creek Rd

Park Dr
Tim

be
r R

idg
e R

d

Ra
il W

ay

Oa
k

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St
Crescent Dr

S M
ain

 St

No
rdi

c D
r

Briarwood Dr

Oli
ve

 St

Erik Rd

Lone Tree Rd

8th St

Fitkin Rd

2nd St

Iow
a S

t

3rd St

Lilac Ln

Fra
nk

lin
 St

Cottage Row Rd

S U
nio

n R
d

Cla
y S

t

Ro
wn

d S
t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Wa
lnu

t S
t

4th St

Wyth Rd

Ca
tal

pa
 Ln

Sp
ruc

e L
n

Bo
x E

lde
r L

n

Ha
ck

be
rry

 Ln

Fo
x

Vie
w D

r

Parkway Ave | Ct

PrairieCt

Le
xin

gto
n B

lvd

Purple
Clover Dr

Woodland Ave
Glenwood Ave

Ga
rne

t Rd

N Ridge Cir

Zircon Ln

Normandy
Dr

W Sunshine Ln

Sonoma Dr

Sc
hre

ibe
r

St

Richmond St

Lex
ing

ton
 Dr

St

Ro
os

eve
lt S

t

6th St

5th St
4th St Ca

the
rin

e S
t

St

Pa
rk 

Dr

Minnetonka

8th St

Ell
en

 St

20th St

Brookside Dr

22nd St

Melrose Dr

Sta
te 

St

Gro
ve 

St

Au
tum

n L
n

Edgew
ood Dr

Bicentennial
Dr

Valley High Dr

Cardinal

Ct

Midway Dr

Ro
wn

d S
t

Valley High Dr

Carlton Dr

Greenhill DrHills Dr

Nordic Dr

Black Hawk Rd

De
wit

t R
d

Cy
pre

ss 
     

     
  A

ve Lake St

Western Ave

Ford Rd

Cre
sce

nt D
r

18th
St

Grand Blvd

Bri
arw

oo
d D

r

Algonquin Dr
Erik Rd

Cle
arv

iew
 Dr

Maplewood Dr

Greenwood Ave

Madison St

Irving St

Acorn Ln

Ca
mp

us 
St

Ca
mp

us 
St

Pa
nth

er
Ln

E Main StBig
 W

oo
ds 

Rd

Lo
ga

n
St

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

3rd St

Rd
Pra

irie
 Do

ck

Technology Pkwy

Sager Ave

Scenic Dr

Amber
Valley Rd

Arbor
Way Blvd

Autumn
Woods Dr

Oli
ve

 St

Scenic
Dr

Ne
bra

ska
 St

Par
k

Blvd

Pe
arl

 St

Cla
y S

t

St

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Blu
ff S

t

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Ca
me

o S
t

OakAve

Grand Blvd

Oak ParkCir

Lamb eth
Rd

P eridotRd

Winter Ridge Rd

Jam
es

Dr

Logan St

Dr

Ma
ryh

ill
Dr

Alexis Blv d

Ridge

Jua
nita

Ave

L ill
ipu t Ln

Westbrook Rd

Ques adaAve

Monterey Dr
Ingersoll Rd Edg

ew
ood

Dr

Valdez Dr

SOakA ve

Reese Rd

Blythe Blvd

Ironwood Dr

Lark Ln

Mauker

Dr

Woodc restDr

N C
ott

ag
e R

ow
 Rd

River RidgeRd

Sa
int

s
Dr

As
bu

ry 
Ln

Aspen Ct

Fountains Way

Da
llas Dr

Garden Ave

Ver
alt

a D
r

Cle
arv

iew

Hil
lsid

e

Lakesh oreDr

23rd St

Ho
rs eshoe Dr

Hawthorne Dr

Ro
yal

Dr

Thunder Rid ge Blvd

University Dr

Th
ym

eR
d

Cottage Grv

Riders Rd

FastLn

Jakob Cir

Go
lde

n
Ln

Katoski Dr

Tim
be

r C
ov

e D
r

Arb
or s

Dr

Maple St Park Pl
Chestnut St
Pine St

Seaward Dr

Lin nwo o d Dr

Sunnysid e Cir

Shooting Star Way

Prairie Pkwy

Prairie View Rd

Starb
eck

 Cir

Je nnings D r

Willow Oak Dr

Post Oak Dr

Tw
in 

Oa
ks 

Ln

Sa
g e

R d

WildF lower Ln

Pri
de

mo
re 

Dr

Ho
me

wa
y D

r

¡¢20

¡¢218

¡¢218

¡¢20

¡¢218

Cedar River

Cedar RiverAlice Wyth Lake

Fisher Lake George Wyth Lake

Big Wood Lake

Snag Creek

South
Prairie
Lake

North
Prair ie
Lake

Dry
 Ru

n C
ree

k

Dry
 Ru

n C
ree

k (S
)

Dry Run Creek (SW)

Dry Run Creek (Univ)

Dry Run Creek (W)

Shirey Lake

Lake Manatt

Mullens Pond

Beaver Creek

Bullfrog Bayou

Railroad Lake

Green Creek

1st Slough

2nd Slough
3rd Slough

á190

á189

á188

á187

á185

á184

á183

á182

á181

á224 á225 á226

á227

á159

á223

á40 á41

á42 á43

Rd

NordicD r

A shworth Dr

Donal d

D r

Re
d O

ak 
Ln

Ashworth Dr

Andy Ave

Leigh LnEden Way

Lak
esh

ore
 Dr

Arbor Ridge  Rd
Maple Grove Dr

Bark w o od Dr

Arb
ors

 Dr

G reen Cre ek Rd

Whisperi ngPinesCir

Dr

Ca
llu

m C

t

Ver
alt

a

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

Cyber Ln

Piza rro C t

K y l i e Ct

Kael Trl

L ore
n D

r

Norse Dr

Ash wor th Dr

Am el ia Dr

A lgo n quin Dr

W i
ld Rose Ct

Cadillac Dr
Terrace Dr

Crossway Dr

Gre enhillRd

Oregon Rd

Con
va i

r L
n

Devlin
Cir

Latham Pl Richland Dr

Lovejoy Dr

Melendy L nStu
rg i

s D
r

SL
aw

n R
d

Bi centennial Dr

McC
l ai n

Dr

Pleasant Dr

Terr ace Dr

Sun
ny

Ln

S ha
dy

Ln

Park Ci r

Ch
err

y L
n

E R i dg
ew

oo
d D

r

W
Rid

gew
oo

dD
r

Res

erv e Dr

TimberDr

Ma
ndalay Dr

Utility
Pkwy

Summit

Dr

Feather RunTrl

Bl uf f St

Ro
cky

Rd

Blair Ridge Rd

Wi ld Horse Dr

S a
nd a

hlwoo dCir

A utumn Ridge Rd

Bi rd
sal

l P
ark

Dr

G e ra ld in e R d

Pa
rk

Dr

Lemongrass Dr

Savory
Ln

Cohen Ct

Ke ag l e s Xing

Pete rs Pkwy

Tierney
Trl

B ig Woods Creek

Ca stle Hill Creek

Area added to
Ward 2 Pct 2

Pct 3
Pct 1

Pct 2

Pct 2

Pct 3

Pct 2
Pct 1

Pct 3

Pct 3

Pct 2

Pct 2

Pct 1

Pct 1

Pct 1

Pct 3

Ward 5

Ward 2

Ward 4

Ward 3 Ward 1

ICity of Cedar Falls, Iowa

© City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed.

Wards & Precincts

2020 Cedar Falls City
Council
Ward 1:    Mark Miller
Ward 2:    Susan deBuhr
Ward 3:    Daryl Kruse
Ward 4:    Simon Harding
Ward 5:    Frank Darrah*
At Large:  Dave Sires
At Large:  Nick Taiber (Temp)
* Mayor Pro Tem

3/20/2020
K:\Projects\Citywide\Roads11x17.mxd

200

Item 23.



Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING THE SUBSECTION OF SECTION 8-1, WARDS AND 
PRECINCTS, DEALING WITH THE DESCRIPTION OF THE TERRITORY INCLUDED IN 
THE SECOND WARD OF THE CITY, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW 
SUBSECTION OF SECTION 8-1, WARDS AND PRECINCTS, DEALING WITH THE 
SECOND WARD OF THE CITY, ALL CONTAINED IN CHAPTER 8, ELECTIONS, OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  The subsection of Section 8-1, Wards and precincts, dealing with the Second Ward of 
the City, contained in Chapter 8, Elections, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is 
hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new subsection of Section 8-1, Wards and precincts, dealing with the 
Second Ward of the City, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 

THE SECOND WARD 
 

The Second Ward shall embrace all of the territory within the City Limits described as follows: 
 

Beginning at the centerline of Greenhill Road and a north-south leg of the City Limits or the east City Limits 
line; thence southerly along the said east City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence 
westerly along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence southerly along 
said north-south City Limits line to the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue; thence westerly along the 
centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue to a north-south leg of the City Limits line; thence southerly along said 
north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the south City Limits line; thence westerly along said south 
City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line 
to the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue; thence easterly along the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue to a 
north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg 
of the City Limits; thence westerly along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; 
thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City limits; thence easterly 
along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City limits; thence northerly along said north-
south City Limits line to the centerline of Viking Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Viking Road to 
a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-west 
leg of the City Limits; thence westerly along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City 
Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits to the centerline of W. 27th Street; thence easterly 
along the centerline of W. 27th Street to the centerline of Hudson Road; thence southerly along the 
centerline of Hudson Road to the centerline of University Avenue; thence northeasterly along the centerline 
of University Avenue to the centerline of College Street; thence northerly along the centerline of College 
Street to the centerline of Seerley Boulevard; thence easterly along the centerline of Seerley Boulevard to 
the centerline of Grove Street; thence southerly along the centerline of Grove Street to the centerline of 
University Avenue; thence easterly along the centerline of University Avenue to the centerline of Boulder 
Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of Boulder Drive to the centerline of Idaho Road; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Idaho Road to the centerline of Tucson Drive; thence southerly along the 
centerline of Tucson Drive to the centerline of Utah Drive; thence westerly along the centerline of Utah Drive 
to the centerline of Dallas Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of Dallas Drive to the centerline of 
Oregon Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Oregon Road to the centerline of South Main Street; 
thence southerly along the centerline of South Main Street to the centerline of Greenhill Road; thence 
easterly along the centerline of Greenhill Road to the point of beginning. 
 

201

Item 23.



 2 

Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 shall consist of all Cedar Falls Township, or bounded by a line beginning at the 
intersection of North Butler Road and Westbrook Road and proceeding east along Westbrook Road until it 
intersects the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls, thence proceeding south and then west and then 
south and then east and then south and then east and then south and the west and then south and then 
west and then south and then east and then south along the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls until it 
intersects W. Ridgeway Avenue, thence proceeding west along W. Ridgeway Avenue to its intersection with 
University Avenue, thence proceeding west on University Avenue until it intersects North Butler Road, 
thence proceeding north along North Butler Road to the point of beginning. 
 
Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 shall consist of the Northwest Corner and North one-half of the Southwest Quarter 
of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, except the West 
231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except Parcel ‘A’ of Plat of Survey Doc. # 2017-02916, 
and also the North 550 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the Northeast Corner Quarter of Section 34, Township 
89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 
 

 
PRECINCT 1 OF THE SECOND WARD 
 
Precinct 1 of the Second Ward shall consist of all the area described as follows: 

 
Beginning at the centerlines of Hudson Road and W. 27th Street; thence southerly along the centerline of 
Hudson Road to the intersection of University Avenue; thence southwesterly along the centerline of 
University Avenue to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly along said east-west City Limits 
line  to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line to the 
centerline of W. 27th Street; thence easterly along the centerline of W. 27th Street to the point of beginning. 

 
PRECINCT 2 OF THE SECOND WARD 
 
Precinct 2 of the Second Ward shall consist of all the area described as follows: 

 
Beginning at the centerlines of University Avenue and Hudson Road; thence northeasterly along the 
centerline of University Avenue to the centerline of College Street; thence northerly along the centerline of 
College Street to the centerline of Seerley Boulevard; thence easterly along the centerline of Seerley 
Boulevard to the centerline of Tremont Street; thence southerly along the centerline of Tremont Street to the 
centerline of University Avenue; thence easterly along the centerline of University Avenue to the centerline 
of Main Street; thence southerly along the centerline of S. Main Street to where it intersects with the 
centerline of U.S. Highway 58; thence southwesterly and southerly along the centerline of U.S. Highway 58 
to the centerline of Greenhill Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Greenhill Road to the centerline 
of Hudson Road; thence southerly along the centerline of Hudson Road to an east-west leg of the City 
Limits or the south City Limits line; thence westerly along said south City Limits line to a north-south leg of 
the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line to the centerline of W. Ridgeway 
Avenue; thence easterly along the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue to a north-south leg of the City Limits; 
thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence 
westerly along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City limits; thence northerly along 
said north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence easterly along said east-west 
City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line 
to the centerline of Viking Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Viking Road to a north-south leg of 
the City Limits; thence northerly along said north-south City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; 
thence westerly along said east-west City Limits line to  the centerline of University Avenue; thence 
northeasterly along the centerline of University Avenue to the point of beginning. 
 

202

Item 23.



 3 

Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 precinct 2 shall consist of all Cedar Falls Township, or bounded by a line 
beginning at the intersection of North Butler Road and Westbrook Road and proceeding east along 
Westbrook Road until it intersects the corporate limits of the City of Cedar Falls, thence proceeding south 
and then west and then south and then east and then south and then east and then south and the west and 
then south and then west and then south and then east and then south along the corporate limits of the City 
of Cedar Falls until it intersects W. Ridgeway Avenue, thence proceeding west along W. Ridgeway Avenue 
to its intersection with University Avenue, thence proceeding west on University Avenue until it intersects 
North Butler Road, thence proceeding north along North Butler Road to the point of beginning. 
 
Also, Cedar Falls Ward 2 precinct 2 shall consist of the Northwest Corner and North one-half of the 
Southwest Quarter of Section 34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa, 
except the West 231 feet of the South 660 feet thereof and further except Parcel ‘A’ of Plat of Survey Doc. # 
2017-02916, and also the North 550 feet of the West 1,083 feet of the Northeast Corner Quarter of Section 
34, Township 89, Range 14 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. 
 

 
PRECINCT 3 OF THE SECOND WARD 
 
Precinct 3 of the Second Ward shall consist of all the area described as follows: 
 

Beginning at the centerlines of Greenhill Road and Hudson Road; thence easterly along the centerline of 
Greenhill Road to the centerline of U.S. Highway 58; thence northerly and northeasterly along the centerline 
of U.S. Highway 58 to where it intersects with the centerline of S. Main Street; thence northerly along the 
centerline of S. Main Street to the centerline of University Avenue; thence westerly along the centerline of 
University Avenue to the centerline of Tremont Street; thence northerly along the centerline of Tremont 
Street to the centerline of Seerley Boulevard; thence easterly along the centerline of Seerley Boulevard to 
the centerline of Grove Street; thence southerly along the centerline of Grove Street to the centerline of 
University Avenue; thence easterly along the centerline of University Avenue to the centerline of Boulder 
Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of Boulder Drive to the centerline of Idaho Road; thence 
westerly along the centerline of Idaho Road to the centerline of Tucson Drive; thence southerly along the 
centerline of Tucson Drive to the centerline of Utah Drive; thence westerly along the centerline of Utah Drive 
to the centerline of Dallas Drive; thence southerly along the centerline of Dallas Drive to the centerline of 
Oregon Road; thence westerly along the centerline of Oregon Road to the centerline of South Main Street; 
thence southerly along the centerline of South Main Street to the centerline of Greenhill Road; thence 
easterly along the centerline of Greenhill Road to a north-south leg of the City Limits or the east City Limits; 
thence southerly along the said east City Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits; thence westerly 
along said east-west City Limits line to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence southerly along said 
north-south City Limits line to the centerline of W. Ridgeway Avenue; thence westerly along the centerline of 
W. Ridgeway Avenue to a north-south leg of the City Limits; thence southerly along said north-south City 
Limits line to an east-west leg of the City Limits or the south City Limits line; thence westerly along said 
south City Limits line to the centerline of Hudson Road; thence northerly along the centerline of Hudson 
Road to the point of beginning.  
 
 
INTRODUCED:         

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 

203

Item 23.



 4 

 
 

__________________________________ 
     Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

204

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Inspection Services Division 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green & City Council  
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA 
  Building Official   
 
 DATE: April 1, 2020  
 
 SUBJECT: Set Public Hearing Date for Locker Room Remodel at the 
  Recreation Center 
 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to remodel the locker rooms at the Recreation 
Center.  This is project #63 in the Capital Improvement Plan.  It follows completion of 
the Recreation and Fitness Center, Operations and Facility Needs Assessment in late 
2019.  An overview of the study was given at the November 18, 2019 Committee of the 
Whole meeting. 
 
The City entered into a contract with Invision Architecture to produce plans and 
specifications for a project in FY2021.  With the exception of the carpet all other items in 
the locker rooms are original from 1993 and in need of an update.  The plan is to 
replace all wall and flooring tile, carpet, plumbing fixtures, lighting, hand/hair dryers, 
drop ceiling, heat pumps (located above the ceiling), remove part of the center section 
of lockers swinging the remaining lockers 90°, thus opening up the center of the locker 
room area.  Permanent benches would be replaced with chairs or stools thus becoming 
more user friendly.  The shower area would have three shower stalls with lots of privacy 
as opposed to the four open showers currently in place.   The majority of this work will 
be replacing fixtures and tile which were original when built in 1993.  This update will 
help allow our facility to remain competitive with other locations offering like activities.  
 
We recommend starting the process of bidding and selecting a contractor by setting a 
public hearing date for the plans and specifications on April 6, 2020. 
 
 
 
 

205

Item 24.



206

Item 25.



207

Item 25.



208

Item 25.



209

Item 25.



210

Item 25.



211

Item 25.



212

Item 25.



213

Item 25.



214

Item 25.



215

Item 25.



216

Item 25.



217

Item 25.



218

Item 25.



219

Item 25.



220

Item 25.



221

Item 25.



222

Item 25.



223

Item 25.



224

Item 25.



225

Item 25.



226

Item 25.



227

Item 25.



228

Item 25.



229

Item 25.



230

Item 25.



231

Item 25.



232

Item 25.



233

Item 25.



234

Item 25.



235

Item 25.



236

Item 25.



237

Item 25.



238

Item 25.



239

Item 25.



240

Item 25.



241

Item 25.



242

Item 25.



243

Item 25.



244

Item 25.



245

Item 25.



246

Item 25.



247

Item 25.



248

Item 25.



249

Item 25.



250

Item 25.



251

Item 25.



252

Item 25.



253

Item 25.



254

Item 25.



255

Item 25.



256

Item 25.



257

Item 25.



258

Item 25.



259

Item 25.



260

Item 25.



261

Item 25.



262

Item 25.



263

Item 25.



264

Item 25.



265

Item 25.



266

Item 25.



267

Item 25.



268

Item 25.



269

Item 25.



270

Item 25.



271

Item 25.



272

Item 25.



273

Item 25.


	Top
	1. Regular Meeting of March 16, 2020.
	200316MINUTES

	2. Special Meeting of March 20, 2020.
	200320MINUTES-SPECIAL

	3. PH-Vacate easement-312 West 1st St.
	1- CC memo to continue public hearing for easement vacation to  4-20-20

	4. Proclamation
	2125_001

	5. Resignation-P&Z-Wingert
	Wingert Resignation

	6. Appointment 04-06-20
	2020_02_28-Civil Service_Lee_R1

	7. Committee of the Whole Minutes 3/16/2020
	Comm of the Whole 03 16 2020

	8. Monthly Report - February 2020
	Monthly Report - February 2020

	9. Sign Permit - 109 East 2nd Street
	1_109 E 2nd Street sidewalk sign permit cc memo 4-6-20
	2_Application &amp; Accompanying Materials

	10. Tobacco Permit
	04062020 Tobacco Application

	11. Beer & Liquor Licenses
	Liquor Beer 4-06-20

	12. Endorsement of "Safe at Home" order
	Safe-At-Home Proclamation

	13. V&T Sales & Marketing Coordinator Job Classification
	1-job class V &amp; T Sales &amp; Marketing Coordinator.council.mem
	2-VT Sales Coordinator Classification

	14. CFU Transfer of Funds
	CFU Transfer

	15. Public Safety Water Transport Tank Truck
	fire tank truck cc memo

	16. Red House Studio Lease
	Red House Lease Hedley

	17. 2020 Permeable Alley Project
	1. 2020 Permable Alley Memo
	2. Form of Contract
	3. Performance, Payment and Maintencance Bond
	4. Insurance
	5. Form of Proposal

	18. 2020 Street Construction Project
	1. 2020 Street Construction Memo
	2. Form of Contract
	3. Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond
	4. Insurance
	5. Form of Proposal

	19. West 1st Street Reconstruction Project
	1. Memo - Terracon Tank Supplemental Report
	2.SA1 - Terracon Tank Report 1st St
	3. Exhibit A - Terracon Tier 2 Supplmental

	20. Supplement-PSA-Oak Park Blvd. Sewer Replacement
	1. Memo - Oak Park PSA Snyder
	2. PSA_SuppAgr_OakParkSanitarySewerImprovements

	21. PSA-Robinson-BH & BH Southwest Subwatershed Assessment
	1. Memo-Robinson Design Agreement BH Watershed Assessment
	2. PSA - Black Hawk Subwatershed

	22. Certify Population-Annexed territory
	1_Memo to Council Certifying Population 04-06-20
	2_Resolution Certifying Population
	3_Attachment A - Legal Descriptions
	4_AnnexPropMap

	23. Set PH-Amend Ward and Precinct Boundary
	1_Memo to Council Setting PH to Amend Ward and Precinct Boundary 04-06-20
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing to Amend Ward and Precinct Boundary
	3_WardPctUpdatedMap
	Ord-Amend Wards Precincts

	24. Set PH-Recreation Center Locker Room
	1-memo notice of public hearing (2)

	25. Allow Bills and Payroll 4/6/20
	1 Daily Invoices 040620
	2 Council Invoices 040620

	Bottom

